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Translation of the Auditors’ Report
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Report on Limited Review of Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

To: The Board of Directors of Faisal Islamic Bank (S.A.E)

Introduction

We have performed a limited review for the accompanying consolidated interim financial statements of
Faisal Islamic Bank (S.A.E) which comprise of the consolidated statement of financial position as of
30 September 2025 and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows for the nine -months period then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated interim financial statements in accordance with the basis of
recognition and measurement in accordance with the Central Bank of Egypt’s rules issued on 16
December 2008 as amended by the regulations issued on 26 February 2019 and the prevailing Egyptian
laws. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these consolidated interim financial statements
based on our limited review.

Scope of Limited Review

We conducted our limited review in accordance with the Egyptian Standard on Review Engagements
2410, "Limited Review of Interim Financial Statements Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity". A limited review of consolidated interim financial statements consists of making inquiries,
primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters in the Bank, and applying
analytical and other limited review procedures. A limited review is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with Egyptian Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable
us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in
an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on these consolidated interim financial
statements.

Basis of the qualified opinion

We have not been provided with the approved financial information related to the bank’s investments
in associate companies (Not — 20 /D) Consolidated to the Interim Financial Statements, which has
prevented us to Verifying the appropriateness of the banks of the equity method, in accounting for these
investments.

Quualified Conclusion

Except for the effects of any potential adjustments mentioned in the paragraph titled " Basis of the
qualified opinion "based on our limited review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the accompanying consolidated interim financial statements do not present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Bank as of 30 September 2025, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the nine -months period then
ended, in accordance with the basis of recognition and measurement issued by the CentfglBask of
Egypt’s rules issued on 16 December 2008 as amended by the regulations issued on 267k 17 28
and in the light of relevant Egyptian laws and regulations relating to preparation of;

interim financial statements. e
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Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt — S.A.E.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 September 2025

Assets

Cash and due from Central Bank of Egypt

Due from banks

Inventory

Customers And Notes Receivable

Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with banks
Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with customers
Financial investments

At Fair value through other comprehensive income
(EVTOCID)

At Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

At Amortized cost

[nvestments in associates

Other assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment in Real Estate Property

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Liabilities

Due to banks

Long term loans

Suppliers And Notes payable

Saving pools and saving certificates
Other liabilities

Deferred Tax liabilities

Other provisions

Current Income Tax Pavable

Total Liabilities
Sharcholders' Equity
Paid-up Capital
Treasury shares
Reserves

Retained earnings (including profit of the period / year)

Total equity due to the bank shareholders
Non-controlling interests
Total Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liability and Shareholders' Equity

CFO

Mohammed Aly Omar

m .

Note
No.
(15)
(16)
(17
(18)
(19/A)
(19/B)

20/A)
20/B)
20/C)
20/D)
2N
(22)
(23)
(24)

o~

(29)
(29
(30)
(30/)

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand

17,776,189 18,317,616
67,032,802 79,989,341
2,275,108 2,460,710
908,285 998,790
49,590 "
14,942,589 14,529,689
39,662,911 33,658,649
581,689 753,981
99,819,130 84,412,381
721,865 654,932
7,706,046 6,933,292
556,285 679,154
4,728,438 2,838,585
35,784 29,335
256,796,711 246,256,455
13,002,578 16,613,725
156,036 183,650
919,947 992,514
190,369,100 176,831,420
7,798,323 7,510,099
972,854 1,059,337
365,640 332,427
1,429,138 1,335,741
215,013,616 204,858,913
7,214,228 5,677,509
(9,892) (9,892)
11,315,435 10,178,451
22,847,869 25,145,220
41,367,640 40,991,288
415,455 406,254
41,783,095 41,397,542
256,796,711 246,256,455

/‘ Governor

Abdel Hamid Mohammed Aboumoussa

- A

- The accompdnying notes from No. (1) to (35) are integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

- Limited review report is attached.

=9 s



Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt — S.A.E.
Consolidated Income Statement

As For the Period ended 30 September 2025

EGP In Thousand

Note From 1January 2025 to From 1 July 2025 to From | January 2024 to From 1 July 2024 10
No, 30 September 2025 30 September 2025 30 September 2024 30 September 2024

Return on Musharaka, Murabaha ,

Windarsbaandsinlar reveniias (6) 19,695,868 6,727,310 16,586,891 5,932,871
fg’;;ﬁsavmg podliand signlar (6) (12,321,991) (4,033,811) (10,677.561) (3.672.520)
Sales income (6) 4,631,009 1,486,158 4,712,423 1.760.307
Cost of sales (6) (3,617,682) (1,191,815) (3.216,239) (1.240,146)
Net interest income (6) 8,387,204 2,987,842 7,405,514 2,780,512
Fees and commissions income (7 450,633 165,452 457,699 157.857
Dividends (8) 244,782 41,864 240,286 11,998
Net trading income (9) 156,886 99,975 275,701 65,952
Gain from financial investments (20/H) 74,953 13,017 166,951 69.060
Impairment credit losses (10) (621,660) 84,344 (867.558) 352,053
Administrative expenses (11 (2,897,239) (884,074) (2.192.407) (709,951)
legitimately due Zakat (375,000) (125,000) (225.000) (75,000
Other opera‘{ting (expenses) revenues (12) (902,490) (524,138) 5,034,831 51.276
Profit before income tax 4,518,069 1,859,282 10,296,017 2,703,757
Income tax (expenses) (13) (1,752,660) (616,523) (1,199,052) (634,491)
Net profit ofithe period befors - 2,765,409 1,242,759 9,096,965 2.069.266
Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests (41,471) (7,895) (107,098) (35.,980)
:f)tn?cr(;)tfitiglflit:; ;:lizin?e‘fstasfter 2,723,938 1,234,864 8,989,867 2.033,280
Earnings per share (EGP) (14) 3.835 14.404

CFO /Governor
Mohammed Aly Omar Ab amid Mohammed Aboumoussa

SN
/

- The accompanying notes from No. (1) to (35) are integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt — S.A.E.

Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statement
As For the Period ended 30 September 2025

Net profit of the period based on
income statement

Other comprehensive income
items that will not be re-classified

in profit or loss

Net change in fair value of
investiments in equity instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net change in deferred tax of
Eguqity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Other comprehensive income
items that are or may be re-
classified to profit or loss

Net change in fair value of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Change in Expected credit losses
of debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Ner change in deferred tax of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

From 1 January 2025
to 30 September

2025

From 1 July 2025
to 30 September
2025

From 1 January 2024
to 30 September

2024

EGP In Thousand

From 1 July 2024
to 30 September

2024

2,723,938

(120,376)

27,085

100,750

{23,834)

(22,669)

1,234,864

{362,782)

81,626

10,533

37

{2,370)

8,989,867

3,927,312

{883,645)

103,105

92,763

(23,199)

2,033,280

382,432

(86,047)

{22,500)

(5,182)

5,062

Total other comprehensive
income during the period

{39,044)

(272,956)

3,216,336

273,765

Total comprehensive income
during the period

2,684,894

961,908

12,206,203

2,307,045

- The accompanying notes from No. {1) to (33) are integral part of the conselidated financiaj statements.
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Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.A.E.
Consolidated statement of changes in Equity

As for the Period ended 30 September 2025

Note
No.

Balances as of 1 January 2025 as previously
issued

Net change in financial investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income
Dividends

Transfer from banking reserve for assets
required by the bank

Transfer to legal reserve (general)

Transter to Capital reserve

Transfer to Capital from Retained Earnings
Net profit of the period

Balances on 30 September 2025 {29}, (30)

Balances as of | January 2024

Net change in financial investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Dividends

Transfer to legal reserve (general)

Transfer to Capital reserve

Net profit for the period

Balances on 30 September 2024

- The accompanying noles from No. (1) 1o (35) are integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

WMH““”mM Total equity Non-
Paid-up & Treasury  attributed to  controlling
. Reserves and net . Total
Capital shares bank share inferests
profit for .
. holder’s
the period
EGP in EGP in EGP In EGP In EGP in EGP In EGP In
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
5,677,509 10,178,451 25,145,220 (2,892} 40,991,288 406,254 41,397,542
- {39,044) 68,338 - 29,294 - 29,294
- - (2,376,850} - (2,376,880 (32,270) (2,409,150)
- (827) 827 - - - -
- 1,173,607 {1,173,607) - - . -
- 3,248 (3,248) - - - }
1,536,719 - (1,536,719) - - - -
- - 2,723,938 - 2,723,938 41,471 2,765,409
7,214,228 11,315,435 22,847,869 (9,892) 41,367,640 415,455 41,783,095
5,677,509 5,959,299 14,644,343 (9.892) 26,271,259 301,104 26,572,423
- 3,216,336 20,753 - 3,237,089 - 3,237,089
- - {1,500,368) - (1,500,368) (27.633) (1,528,001)
- 404,711 (404,711) - - - -
- 9,732 (9.732) - - - -
- - 8,989,867 - 8,989.867 107,098 9,096,965
5,677,509 9,590,078 21,740,152 (9,892} 36,997.847 380,629 37.378.476
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Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.A.E.
Consolidated statement of Cash Flows

As for the Pericd ended 30 September 2025

Cash flows from operating activities
Net Profit before Taxes

Adjustments fo reconcile net profit with cash flows [rom operating activitics

Depreciation and Amortization

Impairment of assets

Revaluation differences for other provisions in foreign currencies
Charge of other provisions

(Profits) of financial investments

(Profits) of selling property, plant and equipment

Dividends

Operating income before changes in assets and linbilitics from operating activities
Net change in assets and liabilities

Balances at the central banks of Egypt as mandatory reserve ratio
Government securities with maturity exceeding three months
Financial Investiments at fair valug through profit and loss
Inventory

customers and notes receivable

Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with banks

Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with customers

Deferred tax (Assets) liabilities

Other assets

Due to banks

Suppliers and notes payable

Saving pools and certificates

Income tax paid

Other liabilities

Net cash flows resulting from operating activities (1)

Cash flows from investment activities

{Acquisition of) property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Returned form selling property, plant and equipment

Dividends received

Payments to aquire investment properties

Payments o acquire financial investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Change in Investments in associates

Payments o acquire financial investiments at amoriized cost

Net cash flows (used in) investment activities (2)

Cash flows from financing activities

(Payment to} long-term loans

Dividends Paid

Change in non-controlling interests

Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (3)

Net (Decrease) Increasc in cash and cash equivalent balance during
the period

Cash and cash equivalent balance - at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalent balance - at the end of the period
Cash and cash equivalent balance are represented in:

Cash and due from Central Bank of Egypt

Due from banks

Government securities deductibie at the Central Bank of Egypt
Belances at the Cenlral Bank of Egypt as mandatory reserve ratio
Government Securities with maturity {exceeding three months)
Cash and cash equivalent

Note
No.

(an

(28)
(12)
(20/H)

(®)

(15)
(20/A,C)
(20/B)
(7
(18)
(19/A)
(19/B)

21
(25}

(26

27

(22)423)
(12)
(8)

31

{15}
{16}
(20
(15}
(20)
(an

30 September

2025
EGP In Thousand

30 September

2024
EGP In Thousand

4,518,069 10,296,017
549,881 312,200
557,362 1,222,439

(131) 4.996
44,369 i3,815
(74,953) (166.951)
(447) (8,272)
(244,782) (240,286)
5,349,368 11,433,958
568,383 {3,075,220)
{6,056,906) (7,285,260)
172,292 (268,507
185,711 (161,487
64,011 (205,203)
(50,181) 66.133
(672,358) (2,541,332)
(86,483) 376,456
(772,244) (483,426}
(3,611,147) (1,661,284)
(72,567) 283,702
13,537,680 38,557,859
(1,659,263) (1,100,159)
368,473 1,305,856
7,264,760 35,242,084
(2,324,696} (802,140)
8,498 §,272
244,782 240,286
(6,670) .
(661,093) (1,354,192)
74,953 (185,049)

(16,446,228) {7.715,555)

(19,110,454) 9,808,378)
(27,614) (16,253)

(2,457,129) {1,334,696)
9,201 79,465
(2.475,547) (1,271,384)
(14,321,227) 24,162,222
92,490,393 60,832,804
78,169,166 84,995 026
17,776,189 16,679,799
67,032,802 70,340,488
53,143,210 51,755,469
(15,145,898) (13,933,002)
{44,637,137) (39,847,728)
78,169,166 84,905 026

- Cash Flow Statement did not include non-cash transactions comprising of amounts as disclosed in note no. (31/2)

- The accompanying notes {rom No. {1} 10 (35) are integral part of the conselidated financial statements.
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Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period ended 30 September 2025

1- Background
Faisal [slamic Bank of Egypt provides all retail and corporate banking services and investment
activities in the Arab Republic of Egypt and abroad through 43 branches and its Head Office located
at 3, 26th July St., Cairo, Egypt.

Faisal {slamic Bank of Egypt (Egyptian Joint stock company) was established under the law No. 48
of 1977, amended by the law No. 42 of 1981 and its Executive Regulation in the Arab Republic of
Egypt, The Bank is listed in the Egyptian Stock Exchange (EGX).

On 26/11/ 2025, the Board of Directors approved the Bank's Consolidated Financial Statements.
Summary About the Group:
Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt Group owns, directly and indirectly, a number of shares in some

subsidiaries and Associates, as foliows:
A — Subsidiaries:

Group's shareholding

Faisal for financial Investments 99.994%
Faisal for securities Brokerage 99.90%
Faisal Bank Exchange 83.22%
Cairo for packaging materials Industry "Copack” 84.47%
Horizon Co. for Investment and Industrial Development 69.00%
[smailia National Co. for Food Industries (FOODICO) 67.98%
TAQA. Co. for Electronic Industries 65.00%
Al-Faisal Real Estate Investment and Marketing Co. 99.999%

B- Associates:
Group's shareholding

Arab Co. for Disinfection activities "TARADIS" 40.00%
Masryia Co. for Takaful Insurance on Property 32.75%
GIG Eygpt Life Takeful 25.24%
ARDIC For Real Estate Development and investiment 2551%
Misr international hospital 24.30%
Arab insurance brokerage 25.00%

2- Summary of significant accounting policies:
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statemeuts are set out
below, these policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated otherwise.

A-Basis of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements
These Cansolidated financial statements are prepared according to the instructions of the Central Bank
of Egypt (CBE) approved by its Board of Directors on 16 December 2008, and the instructions of the
Central Bank of Egypt regarding financial statement preparation of banks according to the requirements
of the IFRS9 "Financial Instruments" issued by the Centrat Bank of Egypt on 26 February 2019,

These Consolidated financial statements were used 1o prepared until 31 December 2018 using the rules of
preparation and presentation of the banks’ financial statemenis and the bases of recognition and
measurement issued by the Central Bank of Egypl on 16 December 2008. As of ist January 2019, and
based on the CBE's regulations issued on 26 February 2019 in respect of the preparation of the banks
financial statements The Bank's management has amended some accounting policies to comply with these
instructions,




Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period ended 30 September 2025

Consolidation

A/1 -Investment in subsidiaries :

Are the companies over which the Bank directly or indirectly has the power to control and govern
their financial and operating policies, Generally, the Bank has a shareholding percentage therein
of more than half of the voting rights.

- Subsidiaries are establishments {including special purpose establishments) over which the bank
has the ability to control their operating and financial policies, and the bank usually has an
ownership percentage therein which exceeds half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are taken into account when
assessing whether the bank has the ability to control the other establishments,

- Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the bank, and
they are also excluded from consolidation starting from the date on which control ends.

- The purchase method is used for the accounting of the acquisitions of companies made by the
Bank, and the acquisilion cost is measured at the fair value of the assets provided , and issued
equity instruments and liabilities incurred by the Bank or liabilities accepted by the Bank in
behalf of the acquired company in the exchange date after adding any costs directly attributed to
the acquisition process, Net identifiable acquired assets including accepted potential fiabilities are
measured at fair value on the date of acquisition irrespective of minority interest, The increase in
the bank’s acquisition cost is recorded in the net identifiable acquisition assets as goodwill, and if
the acquisition cost is less than the fair value of the net identifiable acquisition assets of the
acquiring company, the difference is recorded directly in the income statement.

- when consolidation takes place, the transaction, balances and unrealized profits arising from
transaction between the bank’s companies are excluded, and unrealized losses are excluded,
unless they provide evidence of impairment in the value of the transferred assets. The accounting
policies of the subsidiaries are changed whenever necessary so as to ensure that the unified
policies of the bank are apptlied.

A/2 — Transactions with non-controlling interest holders

The group of transactions with non-controlling interest holders are deemed as transactions with
parties outside the group. Profits and losses resulting from the sale to non-controlling interests are
recognized in the income statement. Purchases from non-controlling interests result in goodwill,
which represents the difference between the consideration paid for the shares acquired and the
book value of the net assets of the subsidiary.

A/3-Investment in associates:
Are the companies over which the Bank has direct or indirect significant influence but do not
reach to the extent of control, Generally, the Bank has a shareholding percentage that ranges 20%
to 50% of the voting rights,

The purchase method is used for the accounting of the acquisitions of the companies made by the
Bank, The acquisition cost was measured by the fair value of assets, or the equivalent assets
presented by the Bank in return, and/or issued equities and/or liabilities incurred by the Bank
and/or liabilities accepled by the Bank on behalf of the acquired company in the offset date

-7 -



Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.A.E.
Noies fo the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period ended 30 September 2025

adding any costs directly related {o the acquisition process, Nel identifiable acquired assets

including potential liabilities are measured at fair value on the date of acquisition irrespective of
minority inlerest, The excess of acquisition cost over the Bank’s share of fair value in the net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill, I the acquisition cost is less than the stated fair value of
the net assets, the difference is recognize directly in the income statement under 'Other
operational revenues (expenses)' item.

Investments in associates in the Consolidated financial statements are accounted for according to
the Owner Equity Method, under the Owner Equity Method the investments in any associate are
initially recorded at the acquisition cost , then the balance of investment is to be increased or
reduced ,to record the company’s share in the profits or losses of the investee company after
acquisition and the company's share in the profits or losses of the investee company is recognized
under the profits or losses of the company, and the investment balance is reduced by the value of
the dividends obtained from the investing company.

Accounting for subsidiaries and associates’ companies is carried out in the bank's separate
financial statements using the Cost Method, according to this method, investments are recognized
at the cost of acquisition including any goodwill less any impairment losses in value, and
dividends are recognized in the income statement when the distribution of these profits is
approved and the bank’s right to collect them is proven.

B-Segment reporting:
An operating segment is a group of assets and operations related to providing products or
services subjected to risks and returns that differ from those of other business sectors, The
geographical sector is engaged in providing products or services in a particular economic
environment subjected to risks and returns that differ from those of other geographical sectors
operating in a different economic environment.

C- Functional and Presentation currency:
The Bank’s Consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian Pound, which is the

Bank’s Functional and Presentation currency,

USD= EGP 47.8744 at the end of September 2025, USD= EGP 50.8388 at the end of December
2024,

Evaluation differences on non-monetary items include profits and losses resulting from change in
the fair value such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit and less, Evaluation
differences resulted from equity instruments classified as financial investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognized as fair value reserve in equity section.

D- Transactions and Balances in foreign currencies:
The Bank maintains the Consolidated financial statements in Egyptian Pound and transactions in

foreign currencies conducted during the year are recorded at the foreign exchange rates prevailing
at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabiiities denominated in foreign currencies are
revaluated at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the end of reporting year, foreign exchange
profits or losses resulting from settlement of these transactions and evaluation differences are
recognized in the income statement in the following items:

- Net trading income (for trading assets and liabilities).

- Other operating revenues {expenses) for the remaining items.

-8 -




Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period ended 30 September 2025

- [nvestment in equity instruments recognized at fair value through other comprehensive income

in equity.

Changes in the fair value of monetary financial instruments held in foreign currency classified as
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are analyzed between evaluation
differences arising from changes in the amortized cost and differences resulted from change in the
prevailing exchange rates, and differences from change in the fair value of the instrument,
Evaluation differences resulted from changes in the amortized cost of the instrument are
recognized in the income statement under financing return and similar revenues, While
differences resulted from change in the prevailing exchange rate are recognized under other
operational revenues {expenses), Differences from the change in the fair value (fair value reserve
{ financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income) are recognized in the
equity section.

Valuation differences on non-monetary items include profits and losses resulting from change in
the fair value such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit and loss, Evaluation
differences resulted from equity instruments classified as financial investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognized as fair value reserve in equity section.

&

Financial assets:

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: Financial assets designated at the fair
value through profit and loss, finance for customers (Musharaka, Murabaha, and Mudaraba
transactions for customers), financial at amortized cost and financial at fair value through other
comprehensive income, The management identifics classification of its investments upon initial
recognition.

Business mode] assessment:

The Bank evaluates the objective of the business model in which the asset is held at the portfolio’s
level, as this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to the
Bank's management, The information to be taken into consideration includes the following:

e The stated policies and objectives of the portfolio and the functioning of those policies in practice,
especially to know whether the management's strategy focuses on earning the contractual revenues
income or matching the duration of financial assets with the duration of financial liabilities that
firance those assets or generating cash flows through the sale of the assets.

« The method of evaluating the portfolio's performance and reporting the same to the Bank's
management.

e The risks affecting the business model performance and the financial assets held in this model and
how these risks are managed.

« Number of sale transactions, volume and timing of sales during the previous periods, the reasons of
these sales and their expectations regarding the future sales activity, However, the information
refated to the sales activity is not considered separately, but rather as a part of a comprehensive
evaluation of how to achieve the Bank's stated objective of managing financial assets and how to
generate cash flows,

The financial assets held for trading or whose performance is evaluated based on fair value are
measured at fair value through profit and loss because they are not held to coliect contractual cash
flows only and are not held to collect contractual cash flows with the sale of financial assets.




Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.AE.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period ended 30 September 2025

Assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of the principal

and the return:

For the purposes of this evaluation, the principal amount is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition, The return is defined as consideration of the time vaiue of
money, the credit risks associated with the principal amount over a certain period of time, and
other basic credit risks and costs (e.g., liquidily risks and administrative costs) as weli as profit
margin.

In the light of evaluating whether the contractual cash flows are payments limited only to the
principal and return, the Bank takes into account the contractual terms of the instrument, this
includes an evaluation of whether the financial asset contains contractual terms that may change
the timing and amount of contractual cash flows, making them unable to meet that condition.

Classification of financial assets and liabilities:

Financial assets are classified based on the Bank’s business model by which these assets and their

coniractual cash flows are managed,

The financial asset is measured at amortized cost if the following two conditions are met and was

not measured at fair value through profit and loss:

« The asset is held within a business model aimed at holding assets o collect contractual cash flows.

» The contractual terms of the financial asset shall result in cash flows on specific dates which are
payments limited only to the principal and the return on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments ate measured at fair value through other comptehensive income items only if they
meet the following two conditions and were not measured at fair value through profit and loss:
e The asset is held within a business model whose objective was achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and sale of financial assets.
« The contractual terms of the financial assets shall result in cash flows on specific dates which are
payments limited only to the principat and the return on the principal amount outstanding.

Upon initial recognition of investment in non-held for trading equity instruments, the Bank may
irrevocably designate subsequent changes in fair value to be measured under other comprehensive

income items, this designation is made based on every single investment.

All other financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit and loss.

In addition, upon initial recognition, the Bank may irrevecably designate 2 financial asset to be
measured at fair value through profit and loss, although it meets requirements of classification as
a linancial asset at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, if this
action would eliminate or substantially reduce the inconsistency accounting mismatch that may
otherwise arise in accounting measureiment

E/1- Financial assets designated at the fair value through profit and loss:

This category includes financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, The financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired and its value charged mainly for sale in the
short-term, or if being a part of a specific financial portfolio that are managed together and there
is evidence of actual recent transactions which refers to earning profits in the short term,

Derivatives are classified as being for trading purpose unless specified as being hedging
instruments.
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Any financial derivative designated as financial instruments recognized at fair value through

profit and loss can’t be re-classified during its custody or validity period, no financial instrument
shifted from the category of financial instruments recognized at fair value through profit and loss
may be reclassified in case this instrument is classified by the Bank at the initial recognition at
fair value through profit and loss.

In alt cases, the Bank never reclassifies any financial instrument and shift it to the financial
instruments recognized at fair value through profit and loss.

o This category includes financial assets held for trading and financial derivatives.

e The financial instruments are classified as held for trading if they were acquired and its value
charged mainly for sale in the short-term or if being a part of a specific financial portfolio including
other financial assets and liabilities that are managed together and characterized by earning profits in
the short term or classilied as unqualified derivatives of hedging instruments.

E/2 Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with customers:
Represent non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detenminable amount, that are not current
in active market, except:

» Assets that the Bank intends to sell soon or in the shott term, in this case, assets will be classified as
at fair value through profit and loss.

* Assets classified by the Bank at fair value through other comprehensive income upon initial
recognition.

o Assets thal the Bank cannot refund its original investment value for reasons other than deterioration
of creditworthiness.

E/3- Financial Investments at amortized cost:

Financial investments at amortized cost are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable
amount and fixed maturity that the Bank management has the ability and the intention to hold it
until maturity, The whole group is re-classified as investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income if the Bank sells a substantial amount of the financial assets at amortized
cost except in the emergency cases,

E/4- Financial Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) represent non-
derivative financial assets that are intended to be held for indefinite period and may be sold to
cover shortage in liquidity or due to changes in interest rates, exchange rates or share prices.

For the financial assets, the following has to be applied:

Buying and selling operations of financial assets are recognized as usual on the frade date on
which the Bank is committed to buy or sell the financial asset, and this applies to the financial
investments at amortized cost as well as financial investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
financial assets has expired, or when the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and benefits
of ownership to another party, Liabilities are derecognized when they are discharged by disposal,
cancellation, or expiry.
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Financial investments ai fair value through other comprehensive income are subsequently

measured at fair value, while financial investments at amortized cost are measured at amortized
cosl.

Profits and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognized directly in equity until the financial asset is
derecognized or impaired, at that time, the accumulative profits and losses that previously
recognized in equity should be recognized in the income statement.

Return calculated at amortized cost, as well as profit and loss of foreign currencies of monetary
assets classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in Income
Statement, Dividends from equity instruments classified as at fair value through othet
comprehensive income are also recognized in Income Statement when declared.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets is determined based on current Bid Prices,
If there is no active market for such financial asset or no Bid Prices are available, the Bank
estimates fair value using one of the valuation techniques, These include the use of recent neutral
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, options pricing methods or other valuation techniques
used by other participants, In case of the fair value of equity instruments classified as at fair vatue
through other comprehensive income cannot be reliably determined by the Bank, it should be
valued at cost after deducting any impairment .

The Bank reclassifies the financial asset classified within financial instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income defined as - Debts (Bonds), transferred from the financial
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income to financial assets at amortized cost

- whenever the Bank has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets during the near
future or maturity date, Reclassification is carried out at fair value at the date of reclassification
and any related profit or loss previously recognized in the equity are treated as follows:

» Financial asset wilh fixed maturity date, profits and losses are amortized over the remaining life of
the investment at amortized cost using the effective return method, any difference between value at
amortized cost and value at maturity date over the remaining life of the financial asset is amortized
by using the effective retwrn method, in case of subsequent impairment, any profits or losses
previously recognized directly in equity should be recognized in the profits and losses.

» Financial asset without fixed maturity, profits or losses are recorded in equity until the asset is sold
or disposed; only then they are recognized in the profit and loss, in case of impairment, profit or loss
that have been previously recognized directly in equity should be recognized in the profit and loss.

If the Bank revised its estimates regarding payments or proceeds, the book value of the financial

asset (or group of financial assets) is adjusted to reflect the actual cash flows and the change in

cstimates through recalculating the book value by calculating the present value of the future cash
flows using the effective interest rate of the financial instrument, The adjustment is recognized as
either revenue or expense in the profits and losses,

In all cases, if the Bank reclassified a financial asset as previously stated, and the Bank increased
its estimates of the future cash proceeds in a later date because of the increase of the amount that
will be refunded from its cash proceeds, such increase is recognized as adjustment to the effective
interest rate as at the date of the change in estimates, and not as adjustments of the book value of
the asset at the date of change in estimates.
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E/5- Financial policy:

The Bank classifies its financial assets through the following categories: Financial assets al
amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss, The classification is generally based on the business
model by which financial assets and their contractual cash flows are managed.

E/5/1- Financial assets at amortized cost:

The financial asset is held within the business model for financial assets held to collect
contractual cash flows, The objective of the business model is lo hold the financial assets to
collect the contractual cash fiow that are represented in the principal amount and the returns.

The sale is an exceptional incident in relation to the objective of this model and the conditions
stated in the standard, which are represented in the following:

- Deterioration in the creditworthiness of the financial instrument issuer.
- Low sales in terms of frequency and value.

- The rationale of each sale transaction and its compliance with the IFRS9 requirements shall be
clear, reliable documented.

A financia} asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL):

- The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows, and

-The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI).

E/5/2- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

The financia! asset is held within the business model of financial assets held to collect contractuai
cash flows and sale.

Both collecting contractual cash flows and selling are complemented to achieve the model
objective.

High sales in terms of frequency and value compared to the business model maintained for
collecting contractual cash flows.

A debt instrument is measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehenaive Income (FVOCI)
only il it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair Value Through
Profit and Loss (FVTPL

The asset is held within 2 business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI).

On initial recognition of an equity investment thal is not held for (rading, the bank may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in Other Comprehensive Income
{OCI). This etection is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
{FVTPL).
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E/5/3- Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:

The financial asset is held within other business modeis that include trading, managing the
financial assets based on fair value and maximizing cash flows through sale.
The objective of the business model is not to held the financial asset for collecting coniractual
cash flows or the asset held for collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Collection of contractual cash flows is an exceptional incident comparing to the model objective.

Characteristics of business model are represented in:

» Structure of a group of activities designed to produce certain output.
» The model represents a complete framework of a certain activity (input - activities - output).
» The single business model can include sub-business models.

- Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset if there is an enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the [iability simultaneously.
(Government securities, Repos and Reverse Repos agreements are netted in the balance sheet
under "Government securities" item

- Financial derivatives and hedge accounting:

Derivatives are recognized at fair value at the date of concluding the derivative contract, and they
are subsequently revaluated at its fair value, The fair value is obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, recent market {ransactions, or other valuation methods such as discounted cash
flow models, and option pricing models as appropriate, all derivatives are included in assets when
their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as conversion option in acquired
convertible bonds, are treated as Conselidated derivatives if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the original contract and provided that the contract itself is
not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in the Income Statement under "Net Trading
Income" item.

Embedded derivatives will not be Consolidated if the Bank chooses to designate the whole

contract as at fair value through profit or loss.

Recognition of profit and loss arising from changes in fair value depends on whether the

derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and the nature of the hedged item, The Bank

designates certain derivatives as follows:

@ Hedging risks of the fair value of recognized assets and liabilities or definite commitments (fair
value hedging).

o Hedging risks of highly expected future cash flows attributed to a recognized asset or liability, or to
predicted transaction (cash flow hedging}.

e Hedging net investments in foreign currencies (net investment hedging).

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives specified for this purpose whenever the required
conditions are fulfilled, At the inception of the transaction, the Bank documents the relationship
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between the hedged items and hedging instruments, along with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions, Furthermore, at the inception of the
hedge, the Bank regularly documents the process in order to estimate whether the derivatives used
in hedging transactions are expected to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or
cash flows of the hedged item.

- Fair Value hedging:

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified for fair value hedges are
recognized in Income Statement along with any changes in the fair value attributable to risk of the
hedged asset or liability.

The impact of the effective changes in fair value of interest rate swap contracts and related
hedged items is recognized in "net return income "item, The impact of the effective changes in
the fair value of currency forward contracts is recognized in "net trading income" item.

The impact of ineffectiveness of all contracts and related hedge items stated in the previous
paragraph is recognized in "net (rading income” item.

When the hedging instrument is no longer qualified for hedge accounting, the book value
adjustment of the hedged item is measured al amortized cost through charging to profit and loss
over the year until the maturity date, Adjustments to the book value of the hedged equity
instrument shall be charged to the equity until disposed.

- Cash flow hedging:

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified
for cash flow hedging is recognized in equity, Profits and losses of the ineffective portion are
recognized immediately in the income statement as "net trading income"

Accumulated amounts in equity should be charged to the income statement at the same periods in
which the hedged item affects profit and loss of the effective portion of the swaps and options as
“net trading income”

When hedge instrument is mature, sold or no longer qualified for hedge accounting, profit and
loss accumulated in equity remain in equity, and recognized in the income statement when the
expected transaction is finally recognized, When the projected transaction is not likely to oceur,
profit and loss accumulated in the equity should be charged immediately to the income statement.

- Net investment hedging:

Net investment hedging is accounted for based on the cash flow hedging, Profit or loss related to
the effective portion of the hedging from the hedge instrument should be recognized in equity;
while profit or loss of the ineffective portion should be recognized immediately in the income
statement, Profit or loss accumulated in the equity should be immediately charged to the income
statement when foreign transactions are excluded.

- Unqualified Derivatives for hedge accounting:

Changes in fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognized in the
income statement under “net trading income” item, Profit and loss from changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are managed in conjunction with financial assets and liabilities are included in
“Net income from financial instruments initially recognized at fair value through profit or loss™.
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- Return income and expenses:
Return income and expenses are recognized, in the income statement under "Return on

Musharaka, Mudaraba, Murabaha, and similar revenues” item or "Cost of saving pools and
similar costs” item, with return income and expenses by using the effective return method for all
return-bearing financial instruments, except for those classified as held for trading purpose, or
initially recognized at fair value through profit and foss.

Effective return is the method of caleulating the amortized cost of financial asset or liability, and
allocating return income or return expenses over the life of the relevant instrument, The effective
rate of return is the rate used to discount the estimated future cash payments or receipts aver the
expected life of a financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to accurately reach
the book value of the financial asset or liability, When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Bank estimates the expected cash flows taking into consideration all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (such as early repayment options} disregarding future credit losses, The
calculation method includes all fees paid or received between the contract parties that represents
an integral part of the effective interest rate; the transaction cost includes any premiums or
discounts.

When classifying finance transactions (Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba) as non-performing
or impaired as the case may be, the retwrn from such is suspended to be recognized as revenue.

- Fees and commissions revenues:

Fees charged for finance transactions or facilities are recognized as revenues when service is
provided, Fee and commission revenues related to non-performing or impaired debts ceased to be
recognized as revenues and are rather recorded off balance sheet, these are recognized as revenue
on a cash basis, Fees and commissions that represent an integral part of the effective interest rate
of a [inancial asset are treated as an adjusiment to the effective interest rate of that financial asset.

Commitment fees for finance transactions are suspended if there is a probability that such finance
will be withdrawn as this commission received by the Bank represents compensation for the
continuous interference for acquiring the financial instrument, such commission is recognized by
adjusting the effective rate of return on finance, in case the commitment is expired, without
issuing the finance transaction, fees are recognized as revenues upon the commitment expiry,

Fees rejated to debt instruments measured at fair value are recognized as revenue al iniial
recognition, Fees charged for marketing syndicated finance transactions are recognized as
revenues upon completion of the marketing process, and the finance is fully used by the Bank, or
preserves its share using the effective interest rate available for other participants,

Fees and commissions, arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction
for a third party such as the arrangement of buying shares or other securities, or acquisition or
sale of businesses, are recognized in the income statement upon completion of the given
transaction, Fees and commissions arising from administrative consulting and other services
rendered over a period of time are usually recognized as income over the period of rendering the
service and according Lo all conditions stated in article (19) of the Egyplian Accounting Standard
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No, (11), Fees related to financial planning and custody services that rendered over a long period
of time are usually recognized over that period.

~ Dividend income:

Dividends are recognized in the income statement when the right to collect it is declared by the
General assembly of the investors.

- Impairment of financial assets:
The Bank uses a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses (ECL) arising from
financial assets designated at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, The assets go through the following three stages based on the change in
credit quality since the initial recognition.

Stage 1: Expected credit loss over 12 months

Stage One includes financial assets at initial recognilion, which do not involve significant increase
in credit risks since the initial recognition or the assets that have relatively low credit risks.

For these assets, expected credit losses are recognized over a period of 12 months and the returns
are calculated on the basis of total book value of the assets (without deducting credit provision),
The 12-months expected credit losses represent losses resulting from the defaults that may occur
within the next 12 months after the date of financial statements.

Stage 2: Lifetime expected credit losses — with no credit impairment

Stage Two includes financial assets that have a significant increase in credit risks since the initial
recognition but there is no objective evidence that the asset is impaired, Lifetime expected credit
losses of these assets are recognized and returns are calculated based on total book value of the
assets, Lifetime expected credit losses are losses resulting from all possible default events over the
life of the financial instrument.

Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit loss — Credit impairment

Stage Three includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the date of
financial statements, Lifetime expected credit losses of these assets are recognized for lifetime.
Under CBE's instructions issued on 26 February 2019, IFRS9 has been applied as of ist January
2019 and the Bank has measured the impact arising from IFRS9 implementation based on the
above-mentioned instructions.

- Financial policy:

The Bank shall review all financial assets except for those assets that are measured at fair value
through profit and loss Lo estimate the impairment loss, which are estimaled as follows:

At the date of financial statements, the financial assets are classified within three
stages:

Stage 1. Financial assets that have not significant increase in credit risks since the initial
recognition, their expected credit losses are calculated for 12 months,
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Stage 2: Financial assets that have significant increase in credit risks since the initial recognition

or the date of investments, their expected credit losses are calculated over the lifetime of these
assels.

Stage 3: Impaired financial assets whose Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) are calculated based on
the difference between the instrument's book value and the current value of the expected futare

cash flows.

@ Credit losses and impairment losses in the value of financial instruments are measured as

follows:
Upon the initial recognition, financial instrument with low credit risks is classified in the first
stage, Credit risks shall be constantly monitored by the Bank's Credit Risk Department.
If there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since the initial recognition, the financial
instrument is moved to the second slage, as it is no longer impaired in this stage.
If there are signs of impairment in the value of the financial instrument, the instrument shali be
moved to the third stage.
Firancial assets that have been held or acquired by the Bank and those assets have higher credit
risks than the Bank’s rates of low-risk financial assets upon the initial recognition, are directly
classified in the second stage, Therefore, their expected credit losses are measured on the basis of
lifetime expected credit losses.

- Significant increase in credit risks:

The Bank determines that financial instrument has experienced a significant increase in credit
risk when one or more of the following quantitative and qualitative criteria are met, as well as
factors related to Probability of Default (PD).

- Quantitative criteria:

If probability of default has increased during the remaining life of the instrument from the date
of the balance sheet compared to the probability of default during the expected remaining life
upon initial recognition, according to the structure of risks accepted by the Bank.

The bank uses three criteria for determining whether has been a significant increase in
credit risk:

A quantitative test based on movement in PD

Qualitative indicators ;and

Aback stop of 30 days past due

Definition of default

The bank considers a financial asset to be in default when :
s Facilities with rating of 8.9 and 10based on the bank’s obligator risk rating model

« The browser is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the
bank (exepl for SMEs where aback stop of 180 days is applied}).

- Qualitative factors:

Finance provided to Retail Banking, Micro, and Small Enterprises:

If the customer has encountered one or more of the following events:

The customer requested to change the short-term payment plan to long-term payment due to
negative impacts related to the customer's cash flows.

Extension of payment period based on the customer's request.
Overdues during the previous 12 months
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= Future Negative economic outlook that may affect the customer's future cash flows,

Finance provided to institutions and medium enterprises:
If the customer is rated as a watch list customer and/or the financial instrument have
encountered one or more of the following events:

- Significant increase in interest rate on the financial asset as a result of credit risk increase.

- Significant negative changes in the activity and financial or economic conditions in the
customer's working environment.

- Rescheduling of payments request due to difficulties encountered by the customer.
- Significant negative changes occurred in actual or expected operating results or cash flows.
- Future economic changes thal may affect the customer's future cash flows.

- Early signs of cash flows and liquidity problems such as delayed payment to creditors/
commercial finance transactions.

Non-payment (default):
Finance and credit facilities granted to Medium, Small and Micro-enterprises and retail banking

are recorded in the second stage if the non-payment period is more than (30) days and there are
overdues equal or more than (180) consecutive days.

Transfer between stages 1, 2 and 3

Transfer from second stage to first stage:

The financial asset shall not be moved from the second stage to the first stage uniess all
quantitative and qualitative criteria of the first stage are met and all past dues and returns of the
financial asset are fully paid.

Transfer from third stage to second stage:
The financial asset shall not be moved from the third stage to the second stage unless all the
following conditions are fulfilied:

— Meeting ail quantitative and qualitative elements of the second stage.
— Payment of 25% of the financial asscts past dues, including deferred / marginal accrued returns,
— Regular payments for at least 12 months.

- Investment Real Estate Property

Investment Real Estate Property represent lands and buildings owned by the bank in order to obtain
returns or a capital increase, and therefore do not include property assets through which the bank
carries out its business or those that have devolved to it in fulfillment of debts. Investment Property are
accounting method appiied for Property, plant and equipment.

- Intangible assets

- Goodwill
Goodwill resulting from acquisition or merger of subsidiaries represents the excess of acquisition
cost over the Bank’s share in the fair value of acquired entity’s identifiable assets and liabilities,
including identifiable contingent liabilities that meet the recognition conditions on the date of
acquisition, Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, 20% amortization or impairment loss,
which is higher, is charged to the income statement

- Computer programis
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The expenses related to developing and maintenance of computer programs are recognized as

expenses incurred in income statement, The expenses, related to certain programs controlled by
the Bank that have economic benefits with a cosl exceeding more than a year, are recognized as
an intangible asset, The direct expenses include the cost of program staff, in addition to an
appropriate share from related public expenses.

The expenses that lead to increase or expansion of computer program performance other than its
main specifications are recognized as development cost and then added to the basic program cost.

The cost of computer programs, recognized as an asset, is amortized over the expected useful life
over the year in not more than 3 years

- Property, plant and equipment
Lands and buildings comprise mainly of head office, branches and offices, all property, plant and

equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses, The historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly related to acquisition of property, plant and equipment items,
Subsequent expenses ate recognized within the book value of the current assct or as a
Consolidated asset - as appropriate - only when future economic benefits related to the asset are
potentially gained by the Bank, and the cost of the item can be reliably determined, Repair and
maintenance expenses are charged to other operating expenses during the year in which they are
incusred.

Lands are not depreciated, Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using a
straight-line method to allocate their scrap value over the estimated useful life for each as follows:

Buildings 50 years

Leasehold improvements 50 years or over period of the lease contract if less,
Office furniture and safes 10 years
Typewriters, calculators and air conditioners 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Computers /Core systems 5 years

The scrap value and the useful life of the property equipment are reviewed at the date of each
financial position, and are amended, if necessary, Depreciated assets are reviewed to identify the
impairment in case events or changes occurred indicating that the book value may not be
refunded, the book value of the asset is immediately declined to the refundable vaiue if the book
value exceeds the refundable value.

The refundable value represents the net sale value or the usage value of the asset whichever
higher, Profit or loss of disposal of property equipment are identified by comparing the net
proceeds against the book value, Profit (Loss) are included in other operating revenues (EXpenses)
in the income statement,

-Impairment of non-financial assets:

The assets that do not have definite useful lives, except for goodwill, shall not be depreciated and
are tested annually for impairment, The impairment of depreciated assets is reviewed if there are
events or changes in circumstances indicating that the book value may not be refunded.

The impairment loss is recognized and the asset value is reduced as much as the increase of the
book value over the refundable value of the asset, The refundable value represents the net sale
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value or the usage value of the asset whichever higher, For estimating the impairment, the asset
should be attached to the smallest possible monetary unit, The non-financial assets that had
impairment are reviewed to determine if there is impairment was refunded to the income
statement at the date of preparation of any financial statements.

- Leases:

All lease contracts to which the Bank is a party, are considered operating lease contracts and they
are treated as follows:

-As a lessee:

Payments under operating lease contracts, minus any discounts obtained by the lessor, are
recognized under general and administrative expenses in the income statement based on a
straight-line method over the contract period.

- As a lessor:

Operating lease assets are included in the fixed assets in the balance sheet and depreciated over
the useful life of the expected remaining life of the asset in the same manner as similar assets, The
lease revenue recorded less any discounts granted to the tenant on a straight-line method over the
contract period.

- Cash and cash equivalent balances:

For the purposes of preparing the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include balances
that have maturities not exceeding three months from the date of acquisition, these balances
include cash and balances due from Central Bank of Egypt other than those within the mandatory
reserve, balances due from banks, and treasury bills.

- Other provisions:

Provision for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognized when the Bank has a current
legal or constructive obligation because of the past events, and it is possible that the using of bank
resources will be required to settle these obligations, and the amount of this obligation has been
reliably estimated.

If there are similar obligations, the outflow used for settlement should be identified taking into
account this group of obligations, The provision is recognized even under minor probability that it
will be linked with outflow for an item of the group.

Provisions no longer required totally or partially are refunded in other operating revenues
{expenses).

The current value of the expected payments to settle obligations after one year from the date of
balance sheet using the appropriate rate in accordance with the terms of settlement — ignoring the
effect of applicable tax rate — which reflects the time value of money, [f the selllement term is less
than one year, the estimated value of the obligation uniess it has a significant effect is stated at the
present value.

- Financial guarantees:

They are contracts issued by the Bank to guarantee finance transactions or debited current
accounts obtained by the Bank's customers from other entities, This, in turn, require to pay certain
installments by the Bank to compensate the beneficiary against a loss incurred because inability of
the debtor to pay due amounts on maturity dates according to the conditions of debt instruments,
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Those financial collaterals are submitted to banks and financial institutions and other entities on
behalf of the Bank’s customers.

The initial recognition of fair value in the financial statements at the date of granting collateral
which niay reftect the guarantee fees later, The Bank conunitment is measured by virtue of the
collateral on the basis of the first measuring amount less depreciation measured in order to record
collateral fees in the income statement using the straight-line method over the collateral lifetime
or the best estimate of the amounts required to settle any financial obligation resulting from the
financial collateral as at the date of the balance sheet, whichever is higher. These estimates are
determined according to experience in similar transactions and historical losses supported by
management decree.

Any increase in liabilities resulting from financial collateral is recognized in the income statement

under "Other operational revenues (expenses)" item.

- Employee benefits:
Specific Retirement Schemes are defined as pension regulations whereby the Bank is committed
to pay income-based contributions to a Consolidated institution (Nationai Organization for Social
Insurance), After payment of these contributions, the Bank is under no legal obligation to pay
more contributions if this organization does not have sufficient assets to provide employees with
accrued benefits resulting from their service during the current and previous periods.

Inx this regard, contributions of Specific Retirement Schemes are paid to the concerned authority in
accordance with insurance regulations concerning pension scheme designed for private sector
workers based on a mandatory or optional contract, with no other liabilities on the Bank other
than the contributions to be paid, those contributions are recognized in employee benefits'
exXpenses.

- Income Taxes:
Income tax on the profit or loss of the year includes both the current and deferred taxes, and is
recognized in the income statement except for income tax related to shareholders equity items that
are recognized directly in shareholders® equity iten.
Income tax is calculated on the net taxable profit, using the tax rates applicable at the date of
balance sheet, in addition to tax adjustments for previous year.
Deferred taxes are recognized due to the temporary differences between the book value of assets
and liabilities according to accounting principles and the amounts used for tax bases, Deferred tax
is determined based on the method used to realize or settie values of these assets and liabilities by
using the tax rates applicable at the date of the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets shall be recognized if it is probable that future taxable profits will be realized
wlhereby the asset can be utilized, and the value of deferred tax assets shall be reduced by the
value of portion not yietding the expected tax benefit during the next years, However, in case of
increment of the expected taxabie benefit, the deferred tax assets are increased within the limit
previously reduced.
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- Financing:
Finances gained by the Bank should be initially recognized at fair value minus the cost of
financing, Financing is subsequently measured at amortized cost, and any differences between the
net proceeds and the value paid over the finance period using the effective return method should
be charged to the income statement,

- Capital:
1- Capital issuance cost:
Issuance cost directly related to issuing new shares or issuing shares against acquisition or share
options is charged to shareholders' equity of total proceeds net of tax.

2- Dividends:

Dividends are recognized as a charge of equity upon the General Assembly approval, those
dividends include employees' share in the profits and the Board of Directors' remuneration as
prescribed by the Bank's articles of association and law.

- Fiduciary activities:
The Bank carries out fiduciary activities that resulted in ownership or management of assets on
behalf of customers, trust, and retirement benefit plans, these assets and related profits are
excluded from the Bank's financial statements, as they are assets not owned by the Bank.

- Comparative Figures:
Comparative figures are reclassified, where necessary, to conform with the changes in the current
yeat's presentation

- Financial Risk Management:

The Bank - as a result of the activities practiced thereby - is exposed to various financial risks,
Since financial activity is based on the concept of accepting risks, some risks or group of risks are
analyzed, evaluated and managed all together, The Bank aims at striking appropriate balance
between the risk and return (interest) to reduce the possible negative effects on the Bank's
financial performance, The most important kinds of risks are credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk
and other operating risks, The market risk includes foreign currency exchange rate risk, interest
rate risk and other pricing risks.

The risk management policies have been laid down to identify and analyze risks as well as setting
limits to the risks and control them through reliable methods and up-to-date systems, The Bank
periodically reviews polices and systems of risk management and introduces amendments thereto,
so that they reflect the changes occurred in markets, products, services, and the best up-to-date
applications.

Those risks are managed by Risk Management Dept, in the light of policies approved by Board of
Directors, The Risk Management Dept, determines, evaluates and covers the financial risks
through close and mutual cooperation with the Bank's various operating units, The Board of
Directors provides written policies for risk management as well as written policies covering
certain types of risks such as credit risk, foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and financial
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and non-financial derivatives instruments, Moreover, Risk Management Dept, is independently

responsible for the period review of risk management and control enviromument.

Risk Management Governance:
The Bank's Risk Management Governance responsibilities are represented in the foliowing:

1-Strong organizational-level intervention, starting from the Bank's Board of Directors to
management of work teams responsible [or operating activities.
2- A strong and tight framework for internal procedures and guiding principles.
3- Ongoing monitoring by different business lines and the support staff as well as an independent
regulatory body in order to monitor risks and ensure compliance with procedures and regulations.
The Board of Directors’ Risk and Audit Committees are mainly responsible for verifying the compatible
internal framework in order to monitor risks and ensure compliance with regulations.

Risk categories:

A- Credit risk: (including the country risk) is the risk arising from failure of the Bank's
customers, sovereign issuers or other counterparties to meet its contractual and financial
obligations.

Credit risks also include risks associated with market transactions (swap deals), Credit risk
may also increase due to credit concentration risks arising from large credit faciities granted
to customers or credit facilities granted to groups of customers who have a high probability of
default.

B- Market risk: It represents losses arising from changes and fluctuations in market prices and
interest rates.

C- Operating Risk: operational risks (including legal risks, compliance risks, accounting and
environmental risks, reputational risks etc,) represent the risks resulting from losses, fraud,
inaccurate financial and accounting data due to inadequate internal procedures and systems,
violation thereof due to arising from human error or external events, Moreover, operational
risk can take the form of compliance risk, which means that the Bank is being exposed fo
financial legal penalties, regulatory and disciplinary sanctions because of nen-compliance
with relevant rules and regulations.

D- Foreign exchange rates and interest rates risks associated with the Bank's balance
sheet: It represents the risks arising from losses or impairment in the value of the Bank's
assets, whether those recorded in on- and off-balance sheet items, arising from changes or
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates or interest rates, Foreign exchange rates and interest
rates risks associated with the Bank's balance sheet arises from commercial banking activities
and head office operations (transactions in equity instruments, investments and bond issues).

E- Liguidity risk: is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due, The Bank allocates sufficient resources in order to be able to implement the risk
management policy within its activities and to ensure risk management framework's
compatibility with the fotllowing basic principles.
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- Full independence of Risk Assessment Departiment from the Operating Units.

- Using a consistent integrated approach to assess and monitor risks in alt departiments and units of the
Bank.

It is worth noting that Risk Management Department is independent from all the Bank’s
operational units and directly reporting to and follows the Bank's Top Management, The
department performs a crucial role in developing the Bank’s performance and maximizing its
profitability by using a robust and coherent risk management framework based on best
practices, ensuring sound risk identification and assessment, The risk management working in
this department consists of highly qualified and specially trained members who are able to
manage credit and market risks through the best operating mechanisms.

Risk Management Department functions include:

- Responsible for adopting and providing a detailed breakdown for the methods and approaches used to
analyze, evaluate, and nionitor credit risks, countries risks, market risks and operational risks, in
addition, it assumes the responsibility for conducting an in-depth review of trading strategies in high-
risk areas and it also earnestly strives for developing models and tools used in prediction and
management of such risks.

- Responsible for carrying out an independent evaluation by analyzing credit-risk transactions and
providing sales managers with pieces of advice on transactions to be conducted by them.

- Responsible for setting a comprehensive framework for ali the Bank's operational risks.

The Financial Treasury Department's Asset and Liability Unit is responsible for evaluating and

managing other basic risk types, namely the risks of inadequate liquidity and risks associated with

imbalance in the Bank's balance sheet structure {resulting from changes or fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates and interest rates due to inadequate liquidity),as well as long-term finance
transactions conducted by the Bank, maintain adequate liquidity, fulfill capital requirements and

manage the Bank's capital structure.

The Bank's Internal Legal Affairs Treasury Department is responsible for managing legal risks,
Compliance Department is responsible for managing compliance risks.

Risk Management Dept, is primarily responsible for setting a robust risk framework to ensure
sound risk identification, assessment and mitigation, this in addition to outlining a comprehensive
set of policies and guidelines required for risk management, The Financial Department's Asset and
Liability Unit also shares this responsibility in certain areas

The Bank's Risk Management Committee is responsible for reviewing and discussing the key steps
for managing the significant banking risks, The committee meets at least every 3 months

Finally, a team of internal auditors monitor the principles, procedures and structure of the Bank's
Risk Management.

- Credit Risk:

The Bank is exposed to credit risk which it is the risk resulting from failure of one party to meet its
contractual obligations towards the Bank, The credit risk is considered one of the most significant
risks for the Bank, The credit risk is basically represented in financing activities that give rise to
facilities and investment activities that resulted in Bank’s assets contain debt instruments, The credit
risk is also found in off-balance sheet financial instruments such as financing commitments, The
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credit risk management and control are centralized in credit risk management team at Credit Risk and
Investment Department that prepare and submit reports to Board of Directors, top management and
head of units on a regular basis.
- Credit risk measurement:

Finances and facilities to customenrs

In order to measure credit risk related to finances and facilities to customers; the following

three factors should be considered by the Bank:

- Probability of default (PD) by a customer or third party in fulfilling contractual obligations.

- The current status and possible future progress from which the bank can deduce the balance

exposed to default (Exposure at default balance).

- Loss given default (LGD).
These factors are embedded in the Bank’s daily administrative operations and activities that reflect
expected loss (the expected loss model) required by Basel committee on Banking Supervision, the
operational measurements may contradict impairment loss according to the Egyptian Accounting
Standard No, 26, Which is based on losses that have been incurred on the balance sheet date (the
incurred loss model) rather than the expected losses.
The Bank assesses the probability of default for each customer using internal rating tools tailored to
classify the creditworthiness of various categories of customers, These methods were developed for
internal assesstment, as to consider statistical analyses, as well as judgment of the credit officials in
order ta identify the appropriate credit worthiness rating, The Bank's customers were divided into
four rating categories, As clarified in the following table, the rating structure applicable in the Bank
reflects the probability of delay in payment, Therefore, customers could move between the various
rating categories depending on evolving circumstances, Rating methods are reviewed and
developed if necessary, The Bank regularly validates the performance methods of the
creditworthiness rating and its predictive power with regard to default events.

Internal ratings

Rating Rating Indicator

1 Performing loans

2 Regular fellows up

3 Watch list

4 Nan-performing loans

The credit status at default depends on the outstanding amounts at the time when the delay
occurred, for example, as for lending, this credit status is considered the nominal value, as for
commitmients, the Bank records all actual withdrawals in addition to any withdrawals occurred
till the date of delay, if any.

Assumed Loss given default or severe loss represents the Bank’s expectation of the loss extent
of amounts claimed if default occurred, it is expressed as a ratic of loss per to the debt amount
and this typically varies according to the type of the debtor, priority of claims and availability
of collateral or other means of credit coverage.

Debt instruments, Treasury bills and other bills:
As for debt instruments and bills, the Bank uses external ratings from rating companies or

similar ratings in order to manage credit risk, if these ratings are not available, the Bank uses
methods similar to those applicable to credit customers, these investments in securities and
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bills are deemned as a methad to have a betler credit quality; and at the same time provide an

available source to meet financing requirements.

- Risk mitigation and prevention policies:
The Bank manages, limits and controis credit concentration at the levet of debtors, groups of
customers, industries and countries.
The Bank controls acceptable credit risk levels using limits for the risk exposure for each
customer, group of customers, and at the level of economic activities and geographical
sectors. Such risks are monitored on a regular basis and subject to an annual or more
frequent review, when considered necessary. Credit risk limits at the level of the customer
the group, the product, the sector, and the state are approved quarterly by the Board of
Directors.

Credit risk limits of any customer, including banks, are resiricted by sub-limits covering on-
and off-balance sheet items, and daily risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward
foreign exchange contracts, Actual amounts are monitored daily against limits.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of customers
and potential customers to pay the amounts due and meet repayment obligations and by
amending the finance limits where appropriate.

Some other specific mitigation measures are outlined below:

Collaterals
The Bank sets a range of policies and procedures to mitigate credit risk, one of these
procedures is obtaining collateral against money granted by the Bank, The Bank sets
guidelines for specific classes of collateral to be accepted, the main collateral types of
financing and facilities are the following:

- Real estate mortgage.

- Pledge of business assets such as machinery and inventory.

- Pledge of financial instruments such as debt and equity instruments.
Longer-term finance granted to corporate entities are generally secured, whereas credit facilities
granted to customers are generally unsecured, in order to minimize the credit loss, the Bank seeks
to obtain additional collateral from certain competent parties as soon as impairment indicators are
noticed for the relevant finance and facitities.
The Bank determines the types of collaterals held as a guarantee for other assets other than
facilities and finances according to the nature of the instrument, Generally, debt instruments and
treasury bills are unsecured, except for assets-backed securities and similar instruments that are
secured by a portfolio of financial instruments.

Derivatives:

The Bank maintains strict control procedures on net open derivative positions (i.e.,, the difference
between purchase and sale contracts), in terms of both by both amount and period, In all cases,
the amount subject to credit risk at any time is limited to the current fair value of the instruments
that are favorable and beneficial to the Bank (i.e.,, an assel that has a positive fair value), which
represents a small portion of the contractual value/ the assumed value used to express the volume
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of instruments outstanding, This credit risk exposure is managed as parl of the overall finance

limits granted to customer, together with the potential risk exposures from market movements,
Collateral is not usually obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the
Bank requires margin depasits from other partics.

Seitlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash, equities or other securities is
made or in return for expecting of corresponding receipts in cash, equities or other securities,
Daily settlement limits are established for each party of the other parties to cover the aggregate
settiement risks arising from the daily Banking transactions.

Credit-related Commitments:

The main purpose of conunitments related to credit is to verify the availability of funds to customers
upon request, Financial collateral contracts and standby letters of credit bear the same credit risks of
finance, Documentary and commercial letters of credit issued by the Bank on behalf of the customer to
grant a third party withdrawal right from the Bank are limited to certain amounts under specified terms
and conditions mostly guaranteed by cargo; consequently it holds risks less than direct financing.

Commitments of credit granting represent the unused part of amounts aliowed for granting finance,
collaterals or letters of credits, The Bank is exposed to potential loss with an amount equal to tofal
unused comimitments pertaining to the credit risk emerging from commitments of credit granting,
However, the expected loss amount is actually less than unused commitments, as most of these
commitments represent potential liabilities of customers with specific credit caracteristics, The Bank
monitors the period of time till the maturity date of these commitments, because the long-terin
commitments usually hold higher rate of credit risk compared to short-term commitments.

Policies of Impairment and provisions:
The internal rating systems highly concentrate on the credit-quality planning at the beginning of
finance and investment activities, Or else , only impairment losses incurred at the date of the batance
sheet should be recognized for the purpose of financial reports based on objective evidences indicating
the impairment as later on stated in this note, Taking into account the difference in the applied
methods, credit losses charged to the financial statements are usually less than the loss amount
estimated using expected loss model of the credit rating, and for the purposes of the CBE's rules,
The Impairment Loss Provision stated in the balance sheet at the end of the year is derived from the
four internal ratings, Nevettheless, most of the provision emerges from the last rating.
The internal rating tools assist the management in determining whether objective evidence of
impairment exists under the Egyptian Accounting Standard No, 26, and based on the following criteria
set by the Bank:
—  Significant financial difficulties are experienced by the finance customer or the debtor.
—  Breach of the terms and conditions of the finance agreement such as nonpayment.
—  Expected bankruptcy of the customer or subject to liquidation claim, or restructure of the credit facility
granted,
—  Delterioration of finance customer’s competitive position,
—  Due to economic or legal financial difficulties of the customer, the Bank offered the finance customer
concessions or privileges, which are not granted by the Bank in normal circumstances.
- Impairment of the collateral value.
— Deterioration of the customer's creditworthiness
The Bank’s policies require reviewing all financial assets that exceed certain relalive significance
(materiality) at least annually or as required, Impairment losses on accounts are identified at individual
basis by evaluating incurred losses at the date of the balance sheet on a case by case basis, These are

applied to all significant accounts individually, The assessment normally includes the outstanding
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collateral, including re-confirmation of its enforceability and the anticipated collection from these
accounts.

Expected credit loss provision is formed based on a group of homogenous assets by using the available
historical experience, personal judgment and statistical techniques.

~-Model for measuring general banking risks:

In addition to the four categories of credit ratings indicated in note (A/1)}, the management makes
classifications based on more detailed sub-groups in accordance with the CBE's regulations, Assets
exposed to credit risk in these categories are ciassified according to detailed conditions and terms
depending on information related to the customer, his / her activities, financial position and payment
schedules,

The Bank calculates the provisions needed for impairment of assets exposed to credit risk, including
commitments related to credit based on rates determined by CBE, If the provision required for
impairment losses according to CBE's regulations exceeds the provision required for preparation
purposes of financial statements using Expected Credit Losses (ECL), General banking risk reserve
included in owners' equity shall be deducted from the retained earning with the value of this increase,
this reserve is amended on & regular basis with the increase and decrease, which equals the increase in
provisions and this reserve is deemed as non-distributable, Note (28/A) shows the "general banking risk
reserve” movement during the fiscal year

Below is a statement of institutional credit worthiness according to internal ratings, compared to CBE's
ratings and rates of provisions required for impairment of assets exposed to credit risks:

CBE's rating Categorization o I?l?:ies{i}éllifed Internal rating Internal categorization
1 Low risks 0 l Performing loans
2 Moderate risks 1% 1 Performing loans
3 Satisfactory risks 1% 1 Performing loans
4 Reasonable risks 2% 1 Performing loans
5 Acceptable risks 2% l Performing loans
6 Marginalty acceptable risks 1% 2 Normal watch list
7 Watch list 5% 3 Special watch list
8 Substandard 20% 4 Non-petforming loans
9 Boubtful 50% 4 Non-performing loans
10 Bad debts 100% 4 Non-performing loans

-Concentration of risks of financial assets exposed to investment and finance risk

Geographical sectors

The following table represents an analysis of the most significant finance and investment
transactions of the Bank stated at the book value, categorized by geographical sector at the end of the

current financial year, for preparing this tabie, The Bank has allocated exposures to geographical

regions based on the customer-domiciled regions:
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30 September 2025

Arab Republic of

(EGP Thousand)

Arab Gulf

Europe . Other countries Total
Egypt Countries
Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with
49,590 - - - 49,590
banks
Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with
14,942 589 - - - 14,942,589
customers
Financial investments:
-At fair value through other comprehensive
. 30,633,471 4,242,101 2,313,138 2,474,201 39,662,911
income
-At fair value through profit and loss 381,689 - - - 581,689
- At amortized cost 92,272,145 - 7,020,594 526,391 99,819,130
Other assets 7,615,493 - 90,553 - 7,706,046
Total at the end of the current period 146,094,977 4,242,101 9,424,285 3,000,592 162,761,955
TFotal at the end of the comparative year 125,940,301 2,310,601 8,015,313 4,021,775 140,287,992
Business Activity Sectors
The following table represents an analysis of the most significant finance and investment risk exposures of the Bank
stated at book value, and categorized according to the Bank's customers’ activities:
30 September 2025 (EGP in Thousand)
) . . Wholesale Governmental
Financial Industrial i Other . .
e o Real estate and retail Sector e Endividuals Total
wstitutions institutions activities
trade
Musharaka,
Murabaha an.d 49,590 i ) ) ) i B 49,590
Mudaraba with
banks
Musharaka,
Musabaha and 337,930 5685653 1,177,363 1,657,611 . 2,664,989 3,419,043 14,942,589
Mudaraba with
customers
Financial
investments:
- At fair vatue
through other 1,511,057 2,796,683 2,885,671 1,559,251 24,697,885 6,212,364 . 39,662,911
comprehensive
income
- At fair value _ 581.6
through profit and - - - - - 581,689 - 581,689
loss
- Atamortized cosl - - - - 99,819,130 - - 99,819,130
Other assets 6,799,554 - 906,492 - - - - 7,706,046
Totel at the end of 8,698,131 8482336 4,960,526 3,216,862 124,517,015 9,459,042 3,419,043 162,761,935
the current period
Total at the end of 6,724,157 8386476 6235913 2,509,870 103,406,889 9940050 3,084,637 140,287,992

the comparative year
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Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risks of fluctuation in the fair value or future cash flows due to change in the

market rates, Market risks emerge from open positions of interest rates, currency, equily instruments; as each

of them is exposed to public and private movements in the market as well as sensitivity levels to market rates

or prices such as interest rates, exchange rates, and equity instruments, The Bank segregates market risks into

either trading or non-trading postfolios.

The Bank is exposed to market risks of fluctuation in the fair value or future cash flows due to change

in the market rates, Market risks emerge from open positions of return rates, currency, equity

instruments; as each of them is exposed to public and private movements in the market as well as

sensitivity levels to market rates or prices such as return rates, exchange rates, and equity instruments,

The Bank segregates market risks into either trading or non-trading portfolios.

- Foreign Currency Fluctuation Risk

The Bank is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and its impact on the

financial position and cash flows, The Board of Directors has set limits by total value for foreign

currencies for each position at the end of the day and during the day in which they are timely monitored,

The following table summarizes the Bank exposure to foreign currency risks at the end of the financial

year, The table includes the book value of the financial instruments distributed and categorized by their

cirrencies:

30 September 2025

(EGP Thousand)

Other
EGP USD EUR GRBP . Total
currencices

Financial assets
Cash and balances at the Central Banks 6,037,081 11,378,824 177,002 69,330 113,952 17,776,189
Due from banks 9,112,724 47,223,385 5,514,036 475,491 4,707,166 67,032,802
Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba

. - 49,590 - - - 49,590
with banks
Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba

. 11,835,459 3,026,722 80,408 - - 14,942,589
with customers
Financial investments:
-At fair value through other

ue froug 25,946,727 11,499,684 2,029,500 ; 187,000 39,662,911

comprehensive income
-At fair value through profit or loss 581,689 - - - - 581,689
-At amortized cost 44,791,529 54,922,076 105,525 - - 99.819,13¢
QOther financial assets 7,533,655 176,293 4,627 2,280 (1,555) 7,706,046
Total financial assets 105,838,864 128,276,574 7,901,844 547,101 5,006,563 247,571,946
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EGP ) EUR GBP Other Total
currencies

Financial liabilities
Due to banks 944,201 9,244,509 2,813,855 13 - 13,002,578
Saving pools and certificates 86,712,425 93,330,589 4,798,816 548,289 4,978,981 190,369,100
Other financial liabilities 6,450,048 1,246,921 47,117 5,611 48,626 7,798,323
Total financial liabilities 94,106,674 103,822,019 7,659,788 553,913 5,027,607 211,170,001
Net balance sheet 11,732,190 24,454,555 242,056 {6,812) (21,044) 36,400,945
Commitments related to finance 2,653,167 2,881,083 12,227 - 7,832 5,554,309
At the end of the comparative vear
Total financial assets 92,527,262 136,282,044 4,536,172 474,677 4,774,794 238,594,949
Total financial liabilities 83,120,222 108,313,931 4,277,033 480,362 4,763,696 200,955,244
Net balance sheet 9,407,040 27,968,113 259,139 (5,685) 11,098 37,639,705

Dealing Room duties:

Submitting periodic reports on the financial market movements,

Implementing the Asset and Liability Management Committee's recommendations that were approved, as
well as presenting progress reports on implementation of these recommendations.

Coordinating with the Asset and Liability Management Unit (ALMU) with regard to natural hedging against
risks thal may arise from specific tansactions and ensuring their compliance with the policies and
recommendations approved by Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO).

Assuming responsibility for short-term liquidity management.

Preparing periodic reports on any developments that occur in the market conditions and drawing attention to
any Hauidity shortfalls.

Informing the Asset and Liability Management Unit of funding needs to deal with the liquidity gap.

Interest rate risk management structure:

This risk is identified and measured by the Treasury Department's Asset and Liability Management
Unit (ALMU), The risks, their limits and corrective actions to be taken are assessed by Assets and
Liability Management Committee (ALCO), chaired by the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer, and the
membership of all executive directors, Chief Financial Officer, Managers of Trade Finance Departments,
Manager of Branches Department, Secretary General and Head of Dealing Room, Dealing Room
implements the necessary procedures established by Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
in order to adjust gaps identified in financial markets, Dealing Room prepares its reports on the
developments that occur and presents them to ALCO and ALMU.

Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCQ) duties:
Deciding on acceptable limits for sensitivity analysis purposes.
Examining the assumptions used in identifying and measuring risks and verifying their accuracy and
approve them.
Reviewing the interest rate risks and gaps and the Bank's sensitivity level, which are stated in the
reports prepared by Assets and Liabitities Management Unit (ALMU).
Evaluating, amending and endorsing the proposed recommendations to adjust the gaps (il any) to be
in line with previously approved limits.
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Asset and Liability Management Unit (ALMU) duties:

- Documenting the risk management policy as approved by the Asset and Liability Management
Committee.

- Preparing the models used in identifying and measuring risks and constantly developing them.

- Preparing reports on values at risk and their position over time, as well as presenting these reports to
Asset and Liability Management Commitice.

- Submitting recommendations to adjust the gaps in accordance with the previously approved limits.

- Qverseeing and following up the implementation of Asset and Liability Management Committee's
decisions and the progress in the implementation process must be notified to the committee.

- Interest rate fluctuation risk

The Bank is exposed to risk of fluctuations in interest rates prevailing at the market, that is the possibility that
changes in the interest rates will affect future cash flows or fair value of a financial instrument due to changes in
market interest rates, The interest rates margin could increase as a result of these changes, and profiis may be
decreased in case of unexpected movements, The board of directors sets limits te in the level of difference
re-pricing rate that the Bank may apply.

The Bank's objective of return rate risk management:

The Bank aims at reducing its exposure to return rate risks as far as possible, taking into account that the value of
the residual risks resulting from return rates is within limits of the sensitivity level approved by the Asset and
Liability Management Committee (ALCO).

The sensitivity level is defined as a change in the net current value of the Bank's future fixed retum rate

positions for every 1% increase in retusn rate curve, Regular foflow-up is carried out to measure the Bank’s
compliance with the prescribed limits.

- Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents difficulties encountering the Bank in meeting its financial commitments
when they fall due and replace funds when they are withdrawn, the consequences may be the failure
to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments to finance and investment.

Liquidity risk management

The Bank's liquidity management process, as carried out by the Bank's Financial Departiment
inciudes:

» Daily funding managed through monitoring future cash flows to ensure that all requirements can
be met, This includes replenishment of funds as they are due or when granted to customers, The
Bank maintains an active presence in the global money markets in order to achieve this goal.

» The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can be easily liquidated in the
event of any unexpected shortfall in of cash flows.

+ Monitoring liquidity ratios against internal requirements and CBE's requirements.

» Managing the concentration and breakdown of finance transaction maturities.

.33 -



Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period ended 30 September 2025

The Bank's objective of Liquidity Management

The Bank aims at financing its activilies based on the best possible prices under normal
circumstances and in order to be able to meet its obligations in the event of the occurrence of a crisis,
to this end, the Bank adopts the following main principles of liquidity management:

-Short-term Liquidity management in accordance with regulatory framework.
-Diversification of funding sources
-Maintaining high-quality liquid Assets.
Measuring and monitoring the liquidity risk structure
The bank's liquidity management Department framework is sumimarized in the following functions:

- Regular evaluation of the Bank's liquidity structure and its development over time,
- Focusing on strategies to diversify funding sources
- The bank assesses funding needs based on the expectations set out in the budget plan in order to

provide appropriate funding solutions.

The potential liquidity gaps are identified by listing the items recorded on and off-balance sheet
according to currency type and maturity dates for these items, The maturity dates for the assets and
liabilities are determined based on the contractual terms of the transactions and historical patterns of
customer behaviors (as in the case of Invesiment Accounts), as well as the traditional assumptions
related to certain items in the balance sheet (as in the case of sharcholders' equity).

For the purpose of monitoring and reporting, cash flows are measured and expected for the next day,
week and month respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management, The starting point
for those expectations is an analysis of the contractual maturities of financial liabilities and expected
collection dates of the financial assets,

Local Investment Department also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and type of
the unused portion of the finance commitments, the usage of the debit credit facilities and the impact
of contingent liabilities such as letters of credit and guarantee.

Funding approach
Liquidity sources are regularly reviewed by a Consolidated team in the Bank’s market risk Dept, to
maintain a wide diversification in respect of currencies, geographical areas, sources, products and
terms.

- Capital management

The Bank manages its capital, which includes equity plus some other items as reported in the balance sheet
to ensure that the following objectives are achieved:
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- Complying with legally-imposed capital requirements in Egypt and in other countries in which the Bank's
branches are operating.

- Protecting the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and enabling the generation of yield for
shareholders and other parties deating with the bank,

- Maintaining a strong capital base 1o ecnhance growth of the Bank’s operations.

Capital adequacy and the use of capital are monitored daily by the Bank's management according to the
requirements of the regulatory bodies 'CBE's requirements’, employing techniques and models based on the
guidelines developed by the Basel Committee on Banking Regulations, the required data as well as deposits
are submitted to the CBE on a quarterly basis.

The CBE requires the Bank to:
- Maintain EGP 5 billion as minimum requirement for the Issued and paid-up capital,

- Maintain a ratio of 12,50% or more between the capital elements and the risk-weighted assets and
contingent liabilities, Since the beginning of January 2019, the minimum level of Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR}) has recorded 12,50% after taking into account the requirements of Conservation Buffer and
Domestic Systemically Important Banks (D-SIBs).

In this regard, the numerator of capital adequacy ratie includes the two following tiers:

Tier one: Is the principal capital that contains paid-up capital (after deducting the hook value of the
treasury stocks), retained earnings and reserves resulting from the distribution of profits except for the
general banking risk reserve, less previously-recognized goodwill and any carried-forward losses, as well
as total balance of othet comprehensive income items in the balance sheet.

Tier two: Is the supplementary capital that contains an equivalent of the general risk provision based on
the balance of required provisions against debt instruments and credit facilities required under stage one
by not more than 1,25% of total risk-weighted assets and contingent liabilities, subordinate
finances/deposits with maturity of more than 5 years (amortizing 20% of its carrying amount in each year
of the remaining five years to maturity), and 45% of the increase between the fair value and boeok value
for each of the financial investments in subsidiaries and associates.

When calculating total numerator of capital adequacy ratio, it is to be taken into account that the
supplementary capital must not exceed the core capital and that the subordinated finance (deposi)must
not exceed half the core capital.

The assets risk weights scale ranging from zero to 200% is based on the debtor nature for each asset to
reflect its related credit risks, taking into consideration cash collateral, The same treatment is used for off-
balance sheet amounts after adjustments in order to reflect the contingent nature and the potential losses
of those amounts.
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In accordance with Basel II, the numerator of capital adequacy ratio consists the two
foliowing tiers:

Tier one: Tier one is the core capital that comprises of paid-up capital (after deducting the book
value of the treasury shares), relained profit, reserves created under law and the Bank's Articles of
Association after the distribution of profits after deducting previously-recognized goodwill and any
camried-forward losses " except the general banking risk reserve”.

Net interim profits have been included in Tier one according to the decision made by CBE's Board
of Directors in its session held on 15 February 2017,

Tier two: Is the supptementary capital that contains an equivalent of the balance of required
provisions against debt instruments and credit facilities required under stagel by not more than
1.25% of total credit risk-weighted assets and contingent liabilities, subordinated finances/deposits
with maturity of more than 5 years (amortizing 20% of its carrying amount in each year of the
remaining five vears to maturity), in addition to 45% of the increase in fair value than book value
for each of the financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income ,debt
instruments at amortized cost ,investments in subsidiaries and associates and 45%of the special
reserve value .

When calculating total numerator of capital adequacy ratio, il is to be taken into account that the
supplementary capital must not exceed the core capital and that the subordinated finance
(depositymust not exceed half the core capital.

The assets risk weights scale ranging from zero to 200% is based on the debtor nature for each asset
to reflect its related credit risks, taking into consideration cash collateral, The same treatment is used
for off-balance sheet amounts after adjustiments in order to reflect the contingent nature and the
potential losses of those amounts.

Capital Adequacy Ratio was calculated in accordance with Basel II requirements based on the
decision taken by CBE's Board of Directors in its session held on 18 December 2012, which was
issued on 24 December 2012.

The Bank has complied with all local capitat requirements, during the past two year.
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The following table summarizes the components of Tier 1, Tier 2 and capital adequacy ratios at the end

of the financial period / vear:

30 September2025 31 December 2024

S EGP in Thousands : EGP in Thousands
Tier | (core and supplementary capital)
[ssued and paid-up capital 7,214,228 5,677,509
Treasury stocks (-) (9,892) (9,892)
Reserves (Legal, gencral and capital) 3,984,221 2,807,366
General Risk reserve 149,153 149,153
Relained earning 18,364,765 11,479,991
Quartcrly / interim profit / (loss) 807,309 0,875,836
Minority interest 4,630 5,029
Total deductions from Going-Concern Capital "Conunon Equity” (3,378,807} (3,639,365)
Total balance of accumulated other comprehensive income items afier regulatory adjustments 7,165,949 7,204,993
Total Tier I - core and supplementary capilal 34,301,556 30,550,620
Tier 2 (supplementary capital):
:::f:azsf;:iea:z:rease in fair value over the book value of financial investments in subsidiaries 1,319,129 1,208,674
Balance of provisions reguired against debt instruments and credit facilities under stage | 265,173 196,729
Total (supplementary capital) 1,584,302 1,405,403
Total Capital Base after deductions (total capital) 35,885,858 31,956,023
Risk-weighted assets and contingent liabilitics:
Total assets and contingent liabilities adjusted with credit, market and operation risk weights 136,748,671 141,863,604
:“:;a:Ic)::‘}‘):::)lnb:is:k!"‘lj;z::;sscts and contingent liabilities adjusted with credit, market o, 26.24 22 53%

in its session held on 7% July 2015. the Central Bank of Egypt has approved leverage ratio regulations. under

which banks must abide by a minimum requirement of (3%) an a quarterly basis as fotlows:

As an indicative ratio applicable as from the end of September 2015 until 2017,

As a mandatory ratio as from 2018.

The CBE requires the Bank to disclose leverage ratio and its components (the numerator and denominator) in
published financial statements in the same manner as Risk-based Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR).

The numerator and denominator of financial leverage ratio include:

Components of the numerator: the numerator of leverage ratio consists of Tier | capital (after deductions)
used in the numerator of Risk-based Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR).

Components of the denominator: the denominator of leverage ratio consists of all on-and off-balance sheet

assets of the Bank - in accordance with the financial statements - what is called "the Bank exposures”.
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Ratio: ratio of Tier 1 capital from capital base (after deductions) to total Bank exposures should not be

less than (3%).

30 September 2025 31 December 2024

EGP in Thousands EGP in Thousands

First; The nuerator

Capital "Tier 1" afier deductions 34,301,556 30,550,620

Second: The deneminator

Total on balance sheet, derivatives transactions and securities financing

transaction exposures 247,936,781 236,948,721
Off-balance sheet exposures 3,671,467 4,581,857
Total on- and off -balance sheet exposures 251,608,248 241,530,578
Financial Leverage ratio % % 13.63 12.65%

- Significant accounting estimates and assumptions:
-Impairment losses of Musharaka, Mudaraba and Murabaha

The Bank reviews its portfolio of Musharaka. Murabaha and Mudaraba transactions to assess
impairment on quarterly basis at least, The Bank depends on personal judgments to identify
whether the impairment losses should be recorded in the income statement or not, and to verify any
reliable information indicating that measurable impairment occurred in the estimated future cash
flows of Murabaha portfolio to recognize the impairment levet of each Murabaha in the portfolio.
These evidences might include information indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment capacity of the bank portfolio of finance customers or local or economic conditions that
correlate with the default of bank assets. When rescheduling the future cash flows, the management
uses estimates based on past loss experience for assets with credit risk having characteristics of
finance and investment transactions at the existence of objective evidences of the impairment
similar to those in the portfolio. The methodology and assumptions for estimating both the amount
and period of the future cash flows shouid be regularly reviewed in order to eliminate any
differences between estimated loss and actual loss based on experience.

-Financial investments at amortized cost

The non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as investments held to maturity. This classification requires high degree of personal
judgment, In making this judgment. the Bank evaluates the intention and ability to keep such these
investments at amortized cost, If the Bank fails to hold these investments to maturity — other than
for specific circumstances such as selling insignificant voiume close to maturity, at that time all
investments at amortized cost are reclassified as at fair value through other comprehensive income,

Hence, these investments will be measured at fair value not at amortized cost, In addition 1o
suspending any other investment classification in this item.
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Fair value of derivatives

Fair value of the financial instruments not quoted in active markets is determined by using
vatuation techniques, these valuation lechniques as models are periodically validated and
reviewed by qualified personnet who are fully independent of the body that created them,
Valuation results depend relatively on experience.

- Financial instruments measured at fair value:

Financial assets classified as held for trading are measured at fair value, and the differences resulting
from change in fair value are recognized in the income statement under "Net Trading Income" item, The
debt instruments classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value, and the differences resulting from change in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income statement under "Fair Value Reserve", With regard to investments in equity
instruments, listed shares are measured at fair value according to the stock market's quoted prices at the
date of Consolidated financial stalements, Unlisted shares, except for strategic investments, are
evaluated by using acceptable evaluation methods such as "Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) and Multiples
Approach”, and valuation differences are recognized in the other comprehensive income statement
within "Fair Value Reserve”, As for strategic investiments, the cost or nominal value is considered the
fair value of these investments.

The Bank adopts the fair value hierarchy based on levels of inputs that are significant to the
entire fair value measurement

Level 1: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Bank can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Level 2 inputs include all inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or lability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Finance and credit facilities for customers

Finance and credit facilities are net of provision for expected impairment losses
Due from Banks

Baiances due from banks are net of expected credit loss provision.

Debt instruments at amortized cost:

Non-derivative financial assets with payments and fixed or determinable maturity dates are
classified as debt instruments at amortized cost within "the business model of financial assets held
to collect contractual cash flow
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5- Segment analysis

- By activity segment

Activity segment includes operating processes and assets used in providing banking services,
management of inherent risks and the interest rate of this activity that might be different from
other activities, The segment analysis of operations according to the Banking activities includes:

Large, medium, and small enterprises

Inctudes current accounts, deposits, debited current accounts, finance and investment transactions, and
financial derivatives,

Investment
Includes mergers, purchase of investments, and financing companies restructuring and financial
instruments,
Individuals

Includes current accounts, saving pools, deposits, personal Murabaha and real estate Murabaha,

Other activities
Includes other banking activities such as fund management,

Inter-segment transactions are on normal commercial terms and conditions and it includes operating
assets and liabilities as stated in the balance sheet.
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6- Net Interest Income and Sales

Return on Musharaka, Murabaha, Mudaraba and similar
revenues from:

The Central Bank of Egypt
Other banks
Customers

Total
Return on government debt instruments

Return on non-government debt instruments

Total

Sales

Total

Cost of saving pools and similar costs from:
Banks

Customers

Total

Sales cost

Total

Net

7- Fees and commissions income

Fees and commissions related to finance and investment
transactions

Fees of corporate financing services

Custody and booikeeping fees

Other fees

Total

8- Dividend’s income

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

30 September 2024
EGP [n Thousand

1,723,708
2,440,203
2,977,880
7,141,791

12,142,695
411,382

19,695,868

4,631,009
24,326,877

(839,770)
(11,482,221)
(12,321,991)
(3,617,682)

(15,939,673)
8,387,204

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

1,947,966
2,665,835
1,986,092
6,599,893
9,604,652

382346

16,586,891

4,712,423
21,299314

(986,041)
(9,691,520)
(10,677,561)
(3,216,239)
(13,893,800)
7,405,514

30 September 2024
EGP In Thousand

58,884

22,353
46,382
323,014
450,633

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

75,336

18,481
65,355
298,527
457,699

30 September 2024
EGP In Thousand

Financial investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial Investmenis at fair value through profit or loss

Total

226,727
18,055

244,782

218,338

21,948
240,286
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9- Net trading income

Foreign currency transactions

Gain from foreign currency transactions

profit from evaluation of assets and liabilities balances in
foreign currency for trading purpose

Equity instruments (trading income)
Total

10- (Charge) of impairment credit losses

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Egypt

Due from banks

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments at amortized cost

Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with customers

Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with banks

Total

11- Administrative expenses

Staff cost

Wages and salaries

Social insurance

Pension cost

Cost of specific retiremens schemes
Total

Depreciation and amortization
Other administrative expenses
Total

12- Other operating (expenses) revenues

(Loss) Gain from valuation of monelary assets and liabilities in
foreign currency {other than those classified as for trading
purposes}

Profits from sale of property,plant and Equipment

Operating lease
Others
{Charge} of other provisions

Total

30 September 2025

EGP In Thousand

30 September 2024
EGP In Thousand

87,269
19,808

49,809
156,886

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

159,040
65,696

50,965
275,701

30 September 2024
EGP In Thousand

(897)
(5,908)
23,334

(328,788)

(309,340)

(561)

(621,660)

30 September 2025

EGP In Thousand

(2,554)
(21,894)
(92,697)

(388,767)

(362,769)

1,123

(867,558)

30 September 2024
EGP In Thousand

(1,252,175)
(31,296)

(13,100)
(1,296,571)
(549,881)
(1,050,787)
(2,897,239)

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

(1,040,142)

447
(4,235)
185,809
(44,369)
(902,490)

(960,146)
(26,413)

(12,747)
(999,306)
(312,200)
(880,901)

(2,192,407)

30 September 2024
EGP In Thousand

4,909,542

8,272
(2,205)
132,637
(13,815)
5,034,831
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13- Income tax (expenses)
30 September 2025 30 September 2024
EGP In Thousand EGP In Thousand

Current income taxes (1,752,660) {1,199,052)
Current income taxes are represented in:

Current income taxes (1,879,885) (1,731,050)
Deferred tax (expenses) revenues 127,225 531,998
Total {1,752,660) {1,199,052)

['ax position is described below:

First: Legal person earnings tax

e Final settlement with large Taxpayers Center was reached and accrued taxes were paid since the
inception of the Bank's activity until 2018,

s As for 2019, tax calculation and agreement were made with large Taxpayers Center and final
setttement is being underway to obtain final tax clearance for 2019.

o As for 2020 and 2022, the tax retun was submitled and accrued tax was paid on the prescribed tegal
dates, tax inspection is currently underway.

o As for 2023-2024, the tax refurn was submitted and accrued taxes were paid on the legally specified
dates, the tax inspection has not been made yet until this date,

Second: Payreoll Taxes

e Final settlement with large Taxpayers Center was made and accrued taxes were paid since the inception of
the Bank's aclivity until 2022.

e As for the period from 1/1/2023 to 30/9/2025, Accrued monthly tax was remitted on the prescribed legal
date, however tax inspection has not been made yet until this date.

Third: Stamp duty

o Final settlement with Large Taxpayers Center was made and accrued tax was paid since the inception of
the Bank's activity until 2020.

o As for 2021-2022: The period has been inspectioned, and we are awaiting the bank's response with the
inspection results.

o As for the period from 1/1/2023 to 30/9/2025, Quarterly tax return was submitted in scheduled time and
accrued tax was paid accordingly, but tax inspection has not been made yet until this date,

Fourth: Property Tax
e All accrued taxes due from the Bank's branches and units were paid until 2025 in accordance with Law No,
196 of 2008, which came into force on 1/7/2013.

With regards to the subsidiaries: -

First: Legal person earnings tax
o the tax declaration has been submitted and accrued tax was paid in legal dates.

Second: Payroll Taxes

»  The accrued taxes were paid in legal date.
Third: Stamp duty
s the tax declaration was submitted and accrued tax was paid in legal dates.

Fourth: Real Estate Property Tax

o the tax declaration was submitted and accrued tax was paid in legal dates.

Fifth: sales Tax & value add tax
s the tax declaration was submitted and accrued tax was paid in legal dates.
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14- Earnings per share

30 September 2025 30 September 2024
EGP In Thousand EGP In Thousand
Net profit of the year 2,723,938 3,989,867
Employees' profit share (expected) (232,500) (210,000)
Board of Director’s remuneration (expected) (45,000) (30,000)
2,446,438 8,749,867
Weighted average of issued common shares 637,845 607,471
Earnings per share (EGP) 3.835 14.404

15 - Cash and due from Central Bank of Egypt

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand

Cash 2,630,291 2,602,438
Balances at the Central Bank of Egypt with in mandatory reserve 15,203,868 15,774,452
Less: Expected credit toss provision (57,970) (59,274)
Total 17,776,189 18,317,616
Non-return bearing balances 7,488,419 8,419,812
Return-bearing balances 10,287,770 9,897,804
Total 17,776,189 18,317,616

16 - Due from banks

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand

Current accounts 1,277,780 1,932,968
Deposits 66,058,062 78,352,741
Less: Unearned revenues {262,010) (266,734)
Less: Expected credit loss provision (41,630) {(29,634)
Total 67,032,802 79,989,341
The Central Bank of Egypt other than the mandatory reserve ratio 3,602,250 14,511,177
Local banks 54,772,296 57,302,031
Foreign banks 8,658,256 8,176,133
Total 67,032,802 79,989,341
Non-return bearing balances 305,949 245,266
Return-bearing balances 66,726,853 79,744,075
Total 67,032,802 79,989,341
Current balances 65,899,787 79,744,099
Norn-current balances 1,133,015 245,242
Total 67,032,802 79,989,341
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17- Inventory

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

Raw Materials stock 561,739
Inventory of production supplies, 705,657
spare parts and fuel
Finished stock 366,709
Real estate inventory 655,000
;\‘/'a.lpatiop differ'en'ces and provision (13,997)
or impalirment in imventory
Total 2,275,108
18- Net Customers and Notes Receivable
30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand
Customers 369,946
Notes Receivable 76,669
Checks for collection 517,373
Customers checks guaranteed by a
bank, promissory notes 15,329
, promissory
Total 979,317
Less:
Provisim‘} for impairment in (71,032)
customet
Total 908,285

19/A- Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with banks
30 September 2025 31 December 2024

EGP in Thousands

Total Musharaka, Mudaraba and Murabaha transactions with banks

Less: Impairment loss provision
Total

31 December 2024

EGP In Thousand
059,648
736,309

324,859
754,000

(14,106)
2,460,710

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand
350,318
96,771
508,047

88,192

1,043,328

(44,538)

998,790

EGP in

Thousands

50,136 -

49,590 -

The following schedule shows the classification of the protofolio and the expected credit loss provision:

{ EGP In Thousands )

30 September 2024

expected

31 December 2024

expected credit

Stage (1) credit {oss Stage (1) Joss provision
provision b
50,136 (5486) -
Total 50,136 {548) -
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19/B - Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba with customers

Retail:

Cars

Purable goods and others

Rea! estate

Total (1)

Corporate:

Large and Medium-sized companies
Small companies

Micro-Sized companies

Total (2)

Total Musharaka, Mudaraba and Murabaha transactions with customers

(1+2)

Less: Advance revenues

Less: Impairment loss provision
Total

Expected Credit loss provision

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand

813,104
614,271
2,625,095

4,052,470

13,402,185
994,586
10,214

14,406,985

18,459,455
(1,844,671)

672198
14,942,589

691,848
498,545
2,382,759
3,573,152

12,783,562
1,189,491
102,028
14,075,081

17,648,233

(1,647,231
(1,471,313)
14,529,689

Analysis of the impairment loss provision for musharaka, murabaha and mudaraba transactions with customers

based on types:

30 September 2025

[ndividuals only

Balance at the beginning of the period 170,611
Charge of impairment during the period 76,557
Amounts written off during the period (256)

Provision no longer required {1,967)

Foreign exchange translation differences -
Balance on 30 September 2025 244,945

31 December 2024

[ndividuals only

Balance at the beginning of the year 59,227
Charge of impairment during the year 144,963
Amounts written off during the year (54}
Provision no longer required (33,525
Foreign exchange transiation differences -
Balance ot 31 December 2024 170,611

(EGP In Thousand)

Large, medium-sized, small

and micro-enterprises, Total
1,300,702 1,471,313
341,440 417,997
(52,705) (52,961)
(106,690) (108,657)
(55,497) (55,497)
1,427,250 1,672,195

{EGP In Thousand)
Large, medium-sized, small

and micro-enterprises, Total
1,020,365 1,079,592
639,098 784,061
{28,736) {28,790)
{731,599) (765,124}
401,574 401,574
1,300,702 1,471,313
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20 - Financial investments

30 September 2025 3 December 2024
EGP In Thousand EGP In Thousand

20/A- Financial Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments listed in the stock market — at fair value:

- Treasury bills 22,813,911 17,500,036
- Debl instruments 3,088,935 3,377,810
Equity instrements - at fair value:

- Listed in the stock exchange market 2,363,734 1,687,937
- Unlisted in the stock exchange market 4,875,238 5,422 419
- Mutual Fund Certificates 6,521,093 5,670,447

Total financial investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (1) 32662911 33,098,649

20/B- Financial Investments at fair value through profit and loss

Equity instruments - at fair value:
- Listed in the stock exchange market 575’212 752,987
Mutual Fund Certificates 6,477 G594
Total financial investments at fair value through profit and loss (2) 581,689 753,081
20/C- Financial investments at amortized cost -

Debt Listed in the stock market

Treasury bills 30,873,803 32,263,590
Uneamned returns (406,823) (959,935)
Expected credit foss provision (137,681) (324,846)
Total (A) 30,329,299 30,978,809
Other debt instruments 70,438,671 53,927,640
Expected credit lass provision (948,840) (494,068)
Total (B) 69,489,831 53,433,572

Total financial investments at amortized cost (A+B) (3) 99,819,130 84,412,381
Total financial investments (1+2+3) 140,063,730 118,825,011
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20- Financial investments (Cont,)
An analysis of treasury bills in each financial investment portfolio is below:

Treasury bills in portfolio of financial investmeats at fnir value through other comprehensive income are represented in:

Treasury bills are represented in: EGP In Thousand
30 September 2025 31 December 2024
Treasury bills - 91 days maturity 8,506,073 9,557,627
Treasury bills - 182 days maturity 8,348,049 8,598,381
Treasury bills - 273 days maturity 5,140,812 194,817
Treasury bills - 365 days maturity 3,037,224 370,862
Sale of treasury bills with a commitment to repurchase (31,265) (33,787
Unearned returns (2,186,982) {1,187,864)
Total 22,813,911 17,500,036

Treasury bills in portfolio of financial investments at ameortized cost are represented in:

Treasury bills are represented in: EGP In Thousand

30 September 2025 31 December 2024

Treasury biils - 91 days maturity - 340,987
Treasury bills - 182 days maturity 256,689 300,869
Treasury bilis - 273 days matutity 66,530 -
Treasury bills - 365 days maturity 30,550,584 31,621,734
Undue returns (406,823) (959,935)
Expected credit loss provision {137,681) (324,846)
Total 30,329,299 30,978,809
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20/D- Financial investments (Cont,)

20/D- Investments in associates

- The percentage of the bank's shareholding in associates is as follows:

30 September 2025 EGP In Thousand
Liabilities
Resident Asscts of the Company i’ruﬁl. / {loss) Baok
of the of the company of the
N revenues Value
company company (Without company
equity}
EGP EGP EGP EGP EGP
Thousand Thousand Thousand Fhousand Thousand
Misr International Hospitak Egypt 1,496,107 241,873 735,153 152,230 359,107
- i , for Tak
Al-Masryia Co, for Takaful Insurance on Egpt 1,158,928 122931 73,390 52,783 249,783
Property
Arabiva Co, for Insurance Brokerage Egypt 653 1,635 6 191y -
Al-Arabiya Co, for Disinfection Works .
" ARADIS" Epypt 754 97 1,653 7 249
GIG Egypt Life Takaful Eaypt 940,438 183,770 462,955 39,973 96,444
IC Tor 4 i f
..i\RD C Tor Real Estate Development and Egypt 3.853.061 4,129,018 9,151 (9,531) 16,282
investment
Total 721,865
31 December 2024 EGP In Thousand
Resident Assets Liabiliies of Profit/ (loss)
. the company Company Book
of the of the . of the
(Without TEVEnes value
company company . company
equity)
EGP EGP EGP EGP EGE.
Thousand Thousand Thousaud Thousand Thousand
Misr International Hospital Egypt 1,380,646 283,052 1,345,870 266,719 313,608
Al-Masryia Co, for Takaful Insurance on Eeypt 3664220 2,707,604 99.912 62,733 225.918
Property
Arabiva Co, for Insurance Brokerage Hgypt 653 1,635 G {191) “
Al-Arabiya Co, for Disinfection Works
" ARADIS" Egypt 755 105 383 3 249
GIG Egypt Life Takaful Egypt 3,765,639 3,050,200 33,304 24937 96,443
.ARDIC For Real Estate Development and Egypt 3357.876 3,616,857 6.071 (14,830) 18714
investment
Total 654,932

- Ralances have been included from the latest available financial statement.

Percentage of
shareholding

24.30%
32.75%
25.00%
40.00%
25.24%
25.51%

Percentage of
sharcholding

24.30%
32.75%
25.00%
40.00%
25.24%
25.51%
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20/H — Gain from financial investments

30 September 2025 30 September 2024

EGP InThousand EGP In Thousand
Gain from investments it associates 74,953 166,951
Total 74,953 166,951

21- Other assets
30 September 2025 31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand EGP [n Thousand

Accrued revenues 4,165,559 2,176,373
Prepaid expenses 338,912 232,921
Down payments for purchase of fixed assefs 224,752 254,834

Assets whose ownership has reverted to the bank as

settlement of debts* 1,893,922 1,890,843
Insurance and custodies 67,471 56,557
Interest-free loan 21 i9
Projects are in progress ** 170,668 1,586,470
Others 575,039 536,199
Amounts paid under the tax account 269,702 199,076
Total 7,706,046 6,933,292

* Represented in housing and administrative units and plots of land that have been acquired by the Bank as
settlement of debts for some finance customers, these assets are seld, when possible, At the end of every
month, the Central Bank of Egypt is notified of the position of these assets in accordance with requirements
stated in Article 87 of the Law No, 194 of 20120,

** Stated as follow:

30 September 2025 31 December 2024

EGP In Thousand EGP In Thousand
Branches under construction 148,598 1,122,604
Other 62,070 463,866
Total 170,668 1,586,470

22- Intangible assets

30 September 2025 31 December 2024

EGP In Thousand EGP In Thousand
Net book value at the beginning of the period / year 679,154 258,907
Additions 156,779 642,715
Amortization during the period / year {279,648) (222,463)
Net book value at the end of the period / year 556,285 679,154
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23-Property and equipment

EGP In thousand

Balance on ¢1/01/2024

Cost

Accumufated depreciation
Net book value on 1/1/2024
Batance on 1/1/2024

Net book value on 1/1/2024
Additions

Disposal

Adjustments

Depreciation cost during the year
Excluded depreciation
Adjusted depreciation

Net book value on 31/12/2024

Balance on 31/12/2024

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value on 31/12/2024
Balauce on 1/1/2025

Net book value on 1/1/2025
Additions

Disposal

Adjustments

Depreciation cost during the
period

Excluded depreciation
Adjusted depreciation

Net book vatue on 30/9/2025

Balance on 01/01/2025
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value on 30/9/2025

24 - Investment in Real Estate property

Balance on 1/1/2024

Net book value on 1/1/2024
Depreciation for the year

Net book value on 31/12/2024
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value on 31/12/2024
Balance on 1/1/2025

Net book value on 1/1/2025
Transfer

Depreciation for the period
Adjusted depreciation

Net book value on 30/9/2025
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book valee on 30/9/2025

Lands and Leasehold Machinery ) "
buildings improvements and equipment Others Total
2,107,292 75.186 1,265,592 623,627 4,071,697
(295,972) {10.512) (794.,067) {381,237) {1,487,788)
1,811,320 38,674 471,525 242,390 2,583,909
1,811,320 38,674 471,325 242390 2,583,909
61,220 18,534 301,375 107,980 489,109
(1,323) - (4,329} (5,166} (16.818)
10,353 2,307 21,514 142,357 176,531
(33.045) (8,107) (115,33%) (76,285) (232,776)
355 - 4,547 4,270 9,172
{10.370) {2,316) (21,343) (142,513) (176,542)
1,838,510 69,092 657,930 273,033 2,838,585
2,177,542 96,027 1,584,152 868.798 4,726,519
{339,032) (20,935) (926,202) {595,763) (1,887.934)
1,838,510 69,092 657,950 273,033 2,838,585
1,838,510 69,002 657,950 273,033 2,838,585
1,493,368 5,735 556,154 112,659 2,167,916
(7,234) - 12) {465) (7,711
(1,316) (221) . 145 {1,392)
(35,177) (61,771) (109,889) (63,175) (270,012)
564 - 12 465 1,041
11 31 - {31} 11
3,288,726 12,866 1,104,215 322,631 4,728,438
3,662,360 101,541 2,140,294 981,137 6,885,332
(373,634} {88,675) (1,036,079) {658,506) (2,156,8%4)
3,288,726 12,866 1,104,215 322,631 4,728,438
EGP In thousand
Lands Buildings Total
18,400 11,1806 29,586
- (251) (251)
18,400 10,935 29,335
18,400 12,512 30912
- {1.577) (1.577)
18,400 10,935 29,335
18,4060 10,935 29,335
5,768 1,466 7,234
. (221) (221)
- {564} (564)
24,168 11,616 35,784
24,168 13,978 38,146
- (2,362) {2,362}
24,168 11,616 35,784
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25-Due to banks

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

Current accounts

Balances of deposits
Total

Local banks

Foreign banks and institutions
Total

Non-return bearing balances
Floating-retum bearing balances
Fixed return-bearing balances

Total

26- Saving pools and saving certificates

On demand accounts

Time deposits and callable accounts
Saving certificates

Cthers

Total

Corporate accounts

Individual accounts

Total

Non-return bearing balances
Floating-return bearing balances

Total

27- Other liabilities

Returns due to customers

Accrued expenses

Legitimate due Zakat

Shareholder dividends

Sundry Creditors and Miscellancous Credit Balances

Total

1,859,433
11,143,145

13,002,578

5,015,409

7,387,169
13,002,578

204,481
11,143,145

1,654,952
13,002,578

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand
2,013,950

14,599,775
16,613,725
2,896,852
13,716,873
16,613,725
211,056
14,599,775
1,802,894
16,613,725

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand

16,461,878 15,902,774
118,364,937 112,130,812
55,068,750 48,508,142
473,495 289,692
190,369,100 176,831,420
5,524,023 3,988,086
184,845,077 172,843,334
190,369,100 176,831,420
16,935,372 16,192,466
173,433,728 160,638,954
190,369,100 176,831,420

30 September 2025

31 December 2024

EGP In Thousand EGP In Thousand
6,088,832 5,577,008
23,415 63,434
375,000 305,235
284,559 364,808
1,026,517 1,199,614
7,798,323 7,510,099
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28- Other provisions

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

Balance at the beginning of the period / year 332,427 331,424
Adjustments for the beginning peried 1,274 -
Foreign exchange valuation differences {131) 5,751
Used during the period / year {17,008) (15,328)
Charged to income statement 76,353 67,708
No longer required (27,283) {57,128)
Total 365,640 332,427

29- Paid-up Capital

Paid-up capital reached EGP 7,214,228 thousand as
all shares are fully paid,

at 30 September 2025, with § | par value for each share and

{EGP In Thousand)
Number of shares Commen shares Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 607,471,450 5,677,509 (9,892) 5,667,617
Transferred to Capital increase 30,373,573 1,536,719 - 1,536,719
Balance at the end of the period / 637,845,023 7,214,228 (9,892) 7,204,336

year

- Authorized capital reached $ 1 billion,

- Issued and paid-up capital amounted to $ 637.8 million equivalent to EGP 7.2 billion, which are
distributed ameng 637,845,023 shares, ali shares are common shares.
- The extraordinary general meeting (EGM) approved the increase of the issued and paid-up capital

of the bank in its meeting on 15/3/2025 to d
rate of 5% according to the value of their c
1,536,719 thousand Egyptian pounds.

30-Reserves

istribute free shares to the esteemed shareholders at a
ontribution, financed from retained eamings, totaling

31 December 2024
EGP In Thousand

30 September 2025
EGP In Thousand

General banking risk reserve (A) 16,112 16,939
Legal reserve {general} (B) 3,939,662 2,766,055
Capital reserve (C) 44,559 41,311
Fair value reserve (D) 7,165,949 7,204,993
General risk reserve (E) 149,153 149,153
Total 11,315,435 10,178,451

A- General banking risk reserve

(EGP In Thousand)

30 September 2025 31 December 2024

Balance at the beginning of the period / year 16,939 20,364
Transferred to banking risk reserve for Assets whose

ownership have reverted to the Bank (827) (3,425)
Balance at the end of the period / year 16,112 16,939
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B- Legal reserve (general) (EGP In Thousand)
30 September 2025 31 December 2024
Balance at the beginning of the period / year 2,766,055 2,361,344
Amount Transferred from previous fiscal year profit to legal 1,173,607 404,711
reserve (generat) I e
Balance at the end of the period / yecar 3,939,662 2,766,055
C- Capital reserve (EGP In Thousand)
30 September 2025 31 December 2024
Balance at the beginning of the peried / year 41,311 31,579
Amount of previous fiscal year profit transferred to capital 3,248 9,732
reserve — s
Balance at the end of the period / year 44,559 41,311

Represent profits from sale of fixed assets that have been transferred to the capital reserve before profit
distribution, this reserve formed created in accordance with Article 40 of the law No, 159 of 1981

D- Fair value reserve (EGP In Thousand)
30 Septembeyr 2025 31 December 2024
Balance at the beginning of the period / year 7,204,993 3,396,859
Change in fair value during the period / year (19,626) 4.850,649
Change in Deferred fax on fair value 4,416 (1 ,091,396)
Change in expected credit josses provision of debt instruments (23,834) 48,881
Balance at the end of the period / year 7,165,949 7,204,993
E- General risk reserve (EGP In Thousand)
30 September 2025 31 December 2024
Balance at the beginning of the period / year 149,153 149,153
Balance at the end of the period / year 149,153 149,153

F- Retained earnings (including profit of the period / year)

30 September 31 December
2025 2024

EGP Thousand EGP Thousand

Balance of retained earnings (including profit of the year) at the

T b 25,145,220 14,644,343
beginning of the period / year
Transferred from fair value reserve 68,338 28,158
Transferred to Capital increase (1,536,719) -
Shareholders' dividends (2,376,880) (1,557,303)
Transferred from general banking risk reserve from asseis whose

. 827 3,425

ownership have reverted to the bank ’
Transferred to legal reserve (general) (1,173,607) (404,711)
Transferred to capital reserve (3,248) {9,732)
Net profit of the period / year 2,723,938 12,441,040
Balance of retained earnings (including profit of the period / year) * 22,847,869 25,145,220

* Retained earnings represent carried-forward surplus of the Bank's profits during previous years until this
date.
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31- Cash and cash equivalent balances

31/1 For The purpose of cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalent include the following balances with
maturities not exceeding 3 months from the acquisition date:

30 September 2025 30 September 2024

EGP In Thousand EGP In Thousand
Cash and balances at the central bank of Egypt 2,630,291 2,746,797
Due from banks 67,032,802 70,340,488
Treasury bills maturing with in period of (less than 3 8,506,073 11,907,741
months)
Total 78,169,166 84,995,026

31/2 For the purpose of preparing Cash Flow Statement, it did not include non-cash transactions that are
represented in this statement :

A. Change in "Murabaha and Musharaka with customers” item didn't include assets whose ownership reverted to
the Bank in lieu of debts which were classified under the item of "other assets” with an amount of EGP 3,079
thousand, in addition to bad debts of customers with an amouni of EGP 52,961 thousand.

B. Change in "Financial Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income” item didn't include
evaluation differences which were listed under the two items "Impairment loss of financial investments” and
"fair value reserve" with an amount of EGP 39,044 thousand.

32- Contingent liabilities and commitments

A-Legal claims
There is a number of outstanding lawsuits filed against the Bank on 30 September 2025, as a result,
a provision was formed for these lawsuits, The formed provision represents a legal obligation
resulted from an event that happened in the past and which was not reliably estimated, as losses are
expected to be incurred as a result there of accordingly that have been previously charged to the
income statement of the Bank.

B- Capital commitments
Contractual agreements of the Bank for capital commitments reached EGP 903,946 thousand during
the period ended on 30 September 2025 compared to EGP 805,815 thousand at the end of December
2024, which are represented in commitments on fixed assets contracts, The Bank's top management
is confident that net profits will be generated and there will be available funds sufficient to cover

these commitiments.

C-Commitments on finance and investment transactions
The Bank's commitments on finance and investment transactions are represented in:

30 September 2025 31 December 2024

EGP_in Thousands EGP in Thousands
Finance commitments 3,945,037 4 886,245
Letters of guarantee and letters of credit 705,326 667,258
Total 4,650,363 5,553,503

-55-



Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt - S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period ended 30 September 2025
33- Related-party transactions

Transactions and balances of related parties at the end of the fiscal period / year are as follow:

1-Musharaka, Murabaha, and Mudaraba transactions with related parties Top management
members and direct relatives
Top management members and direct
relatives
30 September 2025 31 December 2024
EGP in Thousands EGP in Thousands
At the beginning of the financial period / year 1,367 2,717

Musharaka, murabaha and mudaraba carried out during the -

period / year

Mu.sharaka. murabaha and mudaraba collected during the (45) (1,350)
period / yeat

At the end of the period / year 1,322 1,367
Return on Musharaka, Murabaha and Mudaraba * 122 126

* The indicated return is included under the debit balance of the transactions

2- Related-party deposits

Top management members and direct relatives
30 September 2025 31 December 2024
EGP in Thousands EGP in Thousands

Deposits at the beginning of the year 12,229 16,120
Deposits placed during the period / year 72,144 31,252
Deposits recovered during the period / year (62,895) {37,679)
Valuation differences (113) 2,536
Deposits at the end of the period / year 21,365 12,229
Costs of deposits and similar costs 491 467

The above deposits are without guarantee and they have floating return and recovered on demand

34- Mutual funds of Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt (periodic return and cumulative return}

- Mutual fund of Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt (periodic return)

The fund is considered one of the banking activities licensed to the Bank by virtue of Capital Market Law
no, 95 of 1992 and its executive regulation, The fund is managed by Hermes for Mutual Funds
Management, the certificates of the fund reached 500,000 certificates with an amount EGP 50,000,000,
out of which 50,000 certificates (with a nominal value of EGP 100) were allocated to the Bank to
undertake the fund activities.

The Bank purchased 162,420 certificates held with an amount of EGP 22,928,496 whose redeemable value
amounted to EGP 61,810,555 on 30 September 2025,

The redeemable value of the certificate on 30 September 2025 amounted to EGP 380.56 after distributions
amounting to EGP 85.75 since the activity inception, While the number of the Fund's oulstanding certificales was
809,069 certificates on the same date
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Mutual fund of Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt and the CIB (cumulative return)

The fund is considered one of the banking activities licensed to the Bank jointly with the CIB under the Capital
Market Law No, 95 of 1992 and its executive regulation, The fund is managed by CI Asset Management for
Mulual Funds Management, the number of investinent certificates of this fund reached 1,000,000 certificates with a
vaiue EGP 100,000,000 out of which 25,000 certificates (with a nominal value of EGP 2,500,000) were allocated to
the Bank to undertake the fund activities.

The Bank purchased 32,000 certificates held with an amount of EGP 2,353,653 who's a redeemable value of EGP
11,201,920 on 30 September 2025.

The redeemable vatue of the certificate on 30 September 2025 amounted to EGP 350.06The number of outstanding
certificates of the fund was 529,352certificates at the same date.

According to the fund management contract and the prospectus, Faisal Bank receives fees and commissiens in
exchange for the supervision on both funds, as well as other administrative services offered to the fund, Total fees
and commissions carned by the Bank amounted to EGP 2,495,150 for the financial year ending 30 September 2025,
these fees and commissions are included under "fees and commissions revenues” item in the income statement.

35.Significant events

The Monetary Policy Commitlee of the Central Bank reduced interest rates by 525 basis points, equivalent to
5.25%, bringing the overnight deposit and lending yields and the central bank’s main operation rate to 22.0%,
23.0%, and 22.5%, respectively, and the credit and discount rate by 325 basis points to reach 22.5% as follows:

- In its meeting on February 20, 2025, it decided to maintain the overnight deposit and lending rates and the central
bank's main operation rate at 27.25%, 28.25%, and 27.75%, respectively, and also decided to keep the credit and
discouns rate at 27.75%.

- Then, in its meeting on April 17, 2025, it reduced the overnight deposit and lending rates and the central bank's
main operation rate by 225 basis points to reach 25.0%, 26.0%, and 25.5%, respectively, and also decided to reduce
the credit and discount rate by 225 basis points to reach 25.5%.

- Then, in its meeting on May 22, 2025, it lowered the overnight deposit and lending rates and the central bank's
main operation rate by 100 basis points to reach 24.0%, 25.0%, and 24.5%, respectively. It also decided to reduce
the credit and discount rate by 100 basis points to reach 24.5%.

- Then, in its meeting on August 28, 2025, it lowered the overnight deposit and lending rates and the central bank's
main operation rate by 200 basis points to reach 22.0%, 23.0%, and 22.5%, respectively. It aiso decided to reduce
the credit and discount rate by 200 basis points to reach 22.5%. This decision comes as a reflection of the latest
inflation developments and economic forecasts.
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